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JORDAN AHLI BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks

Batances at banks and financial institutions

Deposits at banks and financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Direct credit facilities, net

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets at amortized cost, net

Investment in associates

Properly, equipment and projecls under construction, net
Intangible assets, net

Other assets

Deferred tax assels

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Banks’ and financial institutions’ deposits
Customers' deposits

Margin accounts

Loans and borrowings

Subordinated bonds

Sundry provisions

Income tax provision

Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY
share capital

Statutory reserve

Voluntary reserve

Periodic fluctuations reserve
General banking risk reserve
Fair value reserve - net
Retained earnings

Total Shareholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
21
22

23
24
24
24
24
25
26

31 December

31i December

2018 2017
JD JD
248,221,805 288,714,620
173,568,186 177,424,795
19,414,679 5,037,813
- 954,381

1,424,510,189

1,483,922,385

27,344,278 29,401,562
654,335,587 542,617,540
3,531,147 3,528,666
81,224,526 56,363,728
16,478,637 19,787,541
125,228,773 113,539,543
9,630,207 7,659,003
2,783,487.914 2,728,951,577
98,159,977 78,304,698
1,911,770,121 1,918,660,372
257,416,155 251,959,516
142,471,809 106,776,265
25,000,000 25,000,000
3,609,508 3,885,125
7,222,551 4,418,203

- 491,607
36,525,459 33,269,530
2,482,175,580 2,422,765,316
192,937,500 183,750,000
57,344,171 54,023,096
15,761,637 24,949,137
3,678,559 2,612,649

- 15,353,859
(3,225,878) 912,985
34,816,345 24,584,535
301,312,334 306,186,261

2,783,487,914

2,728,951,577

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 form part of these consolidated financial statements
and should be read with them




JORDAN AHLI BANK
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Interest income
Interest expense

Net Interest income

Net commission income

Net interest and commission income

Gain from foreign currencies

Gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Dividends from financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other income

Gross income

Employees’ expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Credit loss expense on financial assets
Impairment on assets seized by the Bank
Other expenses

Total expenses

Operating profit
Bank's share of associale companies profit (losses)

Profit for the year before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit for the year Atiributable to :
Bank's shareholder
Profit for the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
bank's shareholders

Notes

27
28

29

30
3

33

34
12,13
32
14
35

11

21

36

2018 2017
JD JD

164,970,443 146,723,065
70,773,780 61,386,926
84,196,663 85,337,139
19,065,445 20,991,938
103,262,108 106,329,077
2,814,590 3,333,018
- 2,203
908,047 953,223
5,173,841 7,777,246
8,896,478 12,065,690
112,158,586 118,394,767
41,234,749 40,184,806
12,025,596 12,189,014
1,016,077 11,886,286
1,018,074 6,052,012
23,666,816 27,978,907
78,950,312 98,291,025
33,208,274 20,103,742
2,481 (24,815)
33,210,755 20,078,927
(11,933,475} {6,760,042)
21,277,280 13,318,885
21,277,280 13,318,885
21,277,280 13,318,885

0.110 0.069

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 form part of these consolidated financial statements

and should be read with them




JORDAN AHLI BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income items not to be reclassified to statement of

income in subsequent year
Change in fair value reserve-Net

Total comprehensive income for the year

2018 2007

JD JD
21,277,280 13,318,885
(3,781,896) (1,048,028)
17,495,384 12,270,857

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 form part of these consolidated financial statements

and should be read with them
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JORDAN AHLI BANK .
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLows
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Notes 2018 2017

OPERATING ACTIITIES JD JD
Profit for the year before tax 33,210,755 20,078,927
Adjustments -
Depreciation and amortization 12,13 12,025,596 12,189,014
Credit loss expense on financial assets 32 1,016,077 11,886,286
Sundry provision 20 785,302 1,159,884
Impairment on assels foreclosed by the Bank 14 1,018,074 519,143

- 5,532,869

Provision for foreclosed assels

Unrealized gain from financial assets af fair value threugh profit or loss 3i - 32,211
Gain from sale of propenty and equipment {367,032) (15.430)
Bank's share of associale Company's (profif} losses " {2,481) 24,815
Net interest income (4,464,481) (2,759,138)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 30 (590,460) {857 477)
Operating profit before changes in assets and liabilities 42,631,350 47,791,804
Changes in assefs and liabilities -

Increase in cash and balances at central banks due after 3 months {2,.410,600) -

Cash and balances at banks due after 3 months {14,400,840) 4,099,980
Decrease in restricted balances 270,305 {65.915)
(Increase) in financial assels at fair value through profit or loss - {18,919)
Direct credit facilities 44,078,326 (48,572,069)
Other assets 1,533,740 {3.346,616)
Increase in bank's deposit matured within 3 monihs 11,498,658 -
Customers deposils (6,890,251) (148,634,3B7)
Margin accounts 5,456,639 (3,923,615)
Other liabilities (8.521,757) {12,318,274)
Net change in assets and liabilities 30,614,420 (211,879,815)
Net cash flows from {used in} operating activities before income

tax 73,245,770 {164,088,011)
Income tax paid 21 (7,684,980) (4,708,336)
End of service endemity paid 20 (1,060,919) (667,648)
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities 64,499,871 {169,463,295)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Invesiment in associates - 1,653,499
Increase of financial assets at fair value through OCI (1,127,198} (1,948,637)
(increase) decrease of financial assets at amortized cost {112,106,859) 212,192 415
Purchases of property and equipment, projects under construction,

and intangible assels 12,13 (34,070,326) {24,305,609)
Proceeds from sale of properly and equipment 859,868 3,953,381
Net cash flows (used in) from investing activities {146,444,515) 191,445,049
EINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in loans and borrowings 35,695,544 43,256,232
Dividends paid to shareholders (9,187,500) (8,750,000)
Net cash flows from financing activities 26,508,044 34,506,232
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 30 590,460 857,477
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (54,846,140} 57,344,763
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 379,340,012 321,995,249
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 37 324,493,872 379,340,012

The accompanying notes from 1 to 49 form part of these consolidated financial statements
and should be read with them




JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

{1) GENERAL

Jordan Ahli Bank was established in the year 1955 as a public shareholding Company under
registration No. (8) on 1 July 1955 in accordance with the companies law for the year 1927, with
headquarters in Amman. Its address is Queen Noor Street, P.O Box 3103, Amman 11181 Jordan.
The Business Bank was merged with the Bank effective from December 1996. Moreover
Philadelphia Investment Bank was merged with Jordan Ahli Bank Company PSC effective from 1
July 2005.

The general assembly decided in its meeting held on 30 April 2018 to increase paid-in capital by
5% to become 192,937,500 share / JD after the increase. The increase was through distribution of
5% of voluntary reserve as free stock dividends. The increase was approved by the companies
control department on 16 May 2018 and the Board of Commission of Jordan Securities Commission
on 29 May 2018.

The Bank provides all banking and financial services related to its business thought its main office,
branches in Jordan (56 branches), external branches in Palestine and Cyprus (9 branches) and
subsidiaries companies in Jordan.

The Bank's shares are listed in Amman Stock Exchange — Jordan.
The consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting

held on 4 February 2019 meeting number (2} and are subject to the approval of the Central Bank
of Jordan and the General Assembly of Sharehalders.

{(2-1) BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the Bank and its subsidiaries have been
prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the interpretations of the International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee stemming from the International Accounting Standards Board
and in conformity with the applicable laws and regulations of the Central Bank of Jordan.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
assets at fair value through profit and Loss and financial assets at fair value through Comprehensive
Income and financial derivatives which have been measured at fair value at the date of the
consolidated financial statements, moreover assets and liabilities that have been hedged for change
in fair value are stated at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Jordanian Dinar (JD) which is the base
currency of the Bank.

2-2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidiaries were the Bank holds control over the subsidiaries. The contral exists when the Bank
controls the subsidiaries significant and relevant activities and is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the subsidiaries and has the ability to affect those returns through




JORDAN AHLI BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

its power over the subsidiaries. All balances, fransactions income, and expenses between the Bank
and subsidiaries are eliminated.

The Bank's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as follows;

A, _Abli Micro Finance Company

Ahli Micro Finance Company is wholly owned by Jordan Ahli Bank. The Company's objective is to
grant loans to limited income individuals. Its capital amounted to JD 6 million, total assets
amounted to JD 20,772,793, and total liabilities to JD 11,392,103 as of 31 December 2018. Its total
revenues amounted to JD 7,868,205, and total expenses to JD 6,638,554 for the year ended 31
December 2018, before excluding any transactions, balances, revenue, and expenses between
the Company and the Bank.

B. __ Ahli Financial Brokerage Company

Ahli Financial Brokerage Company is wholly owned by Jordan Ahli Bank with a capital of JD 3
million. s total assets amounted to JD 4,158,321, and total liabilities to JD 533,083, as of 31
December 2018. Moreover, its total revenues amounted to JD 282,629, and its total expenses to
JD 324,311 for the year ended 31 December 2018, before excluding any transactions, balances,
revenue, and expenses between the Company and the Bank.

C.___Abli Financial Leasing Company

Ahli Financial Leasing Company is wholly owned by Jordan Ahli Bank with a capital of JD 17.5
million. Its total assets amounted to JD 87,980,267, and total liabilities to JD 58,070,111 as of 31
December 2018. Moreovaer, its total revenues amounted to JD 5,819,744, and its total expenses
to JD 2,240,919 for the year ended 31 December 2018, before excluding any transactions,
balances, revenue, and expenses between the Company and the Bank.

D. Ahli Financial Technology Company

Ahli Financial Technology Company is wholly owned by Jordan Ahli Bank with a capital of JD 100
thousand. lts total assets amounted to JD 125,405, and total liabilities to JD 6,100 as of 31
December 2018. Moreover, its total revenues amounted to JD 33,055, and its total expenses to
JD 13,750 for the year ended 31 December 2018, before excluding any transactions, balances,
revenue, and expenses befween the Company and the Bank.

- The financial statements of the subsidiary companies are prepared for the same financial
year, using the same accounting policies adopted by the Bank. If the accounting policies
adopted by the companies are different from those used by the Bank, the necessary
adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary companies are made to comply with
the accounting policies followed by the Bank.

- The results of the subsidiaries are incorporated into the consolidated statement of income
from the effective date of acquisition, which is the date on which actual control over the
subsidiaries is assumed by the Bank. Moreover, the operating results of the disposed
subsidiaries are incorporated into the consolidated statement of income up to the date of
disposal, which is the date on which the Bank loses control over the subsidiaries.

- Non — controlling interests represent the portion of owners’ equity not owned by the Bank in
the subsidiaries.




JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

- In case separate financial statements are prepared for the Bank as a stand-alone entity,
investments in the subsidiary companies are shown in accordance with the equity method.




JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(3-1) CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Bank's annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017, except for the followings adoption of new
standards effective as at 1 January 2018:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The Bank has adopted IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments on the required effective date 1st
January 2018, the date on which the Bank has assessed the requirements of a new expected loss
impairment model, hedge accounting, and the revised guidance on the classification and
measurement requirements of financial instruments. The Bank had previously implemented the
first phase of IFRS 9 as issued during 2009. The date of initial implementation of the first phase of

IFRS 9 was 1 January 2011.

The standard has been applied retrospectively and, in line with IFRS 9, comparative amounts have
not been restated. The impact of the adoption of IFRS 9 as at 1st January 2018 has been
recognised in retained earnings. The standard eliminates the use of the existing IAS 39 incurred
loss impairment model approach, uses the revised hedge accounting framework, and the revised
guidance on the classification and measurement requirements.

IFRS 9 (2014) provides revised guidance on how an entity should classify and measure its financial
assets and financial liabilities. [FRS 9 requires all financial assets to be classified in their entirety
on the basis of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The Bank reviewed and assessed the classification
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities on the adoption of IFRS 9 (2009) and
has further reviewed and assessed the existing financial assets and financial liabilities at the date
of the required application on 1 January 2018,

There has been no changes in the classification and measurement of financial assets or financial
liabilities on the adoption of IFRS 9 (2014).

IFRS 9 (2014) replaces the incurred loss model in IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement with an expected credit loss model. The new impairment model also applies to
certain loan commitments, financial guarantee contracts, and placements, but not to equity
investments. If a financial asset had low credit risk at the date of initial application of IFRS 9, then
the credit risk of the asset has been deemed to have not increased significantly since its initial
recognition. Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognised earlier than under [AS 39.




JORDAN AHLI BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The impact of this change in accounting policy as at 1 January 2018 caused the retained earnings
to increase by JD 2,5 million as follows:

Balance as at 1
January 2018
Balance as al following lhe Effect resulling
Slatement of financial position items 31 December Reclassified Expected implementalion from
impacted 2017 Amounts credit losses of IFRS 9 reclassification
JD JD JD JD JD

General banking risk reserve 15,353,859 (15,353,859) - - (15,353,859}
. Retained eamings 24,584,535 19,099,414 (16,597,162} 27,086,787 2,502,252

Fair value reserve 912,985 (330,204) - 582,781 (330,204)

Balances and deposils at cenfral banks 288,714,620 - 9,348 288,705,272 -

Balances and deposils al banks and

financial inslitutions 182,462,608 - 17,340 182,445,268 -

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 954,381 (954,381) - - (954,381)

Transferred to FVOCI 954,381 - 954,381 954,381

Equity instrumenls - 954,381 - 954,381 954,381

Financial assets al fair value through

other comprehensive income 29,401,562 954,381 30,355,943 954,381

Direcl credit facilities 1,483,922 385 - 14,639,194 1,469,283,191 -

Financial assels at amortized cost 542,617,540 - 232,965 542,384,575 -

Letter of guarantee and letter of credit 424,284,125 - 1,086,132 423,197,993 -

Unutilized facililies ceilings 187,152,155 - 612,183 186,539,972 -

The opening balance for provisions after

Reporting Standard No (9)

implementation of International Financial

Current Re-measurement  Balance according

Item Provision impact to IFRS 9
JD JD JD

Balances at Central Banks - 9,348 9,348
Balances and deposits at banks and
financial institutions - 17,340 17,340
Direct credit facilities 90,477,858 14,639,194 105,117,052
Financial assets at amortized cost - 232,965 232,965
Financial assets at fair value through
comprehensive income - - -
Letters of guarantee and letters of credit - 1,086,132 1,086,132
Unutilized facilities ceilings - 612,183 612,183




JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The expected credit losses after 1 January 2018:

Stlage 1 Slage 2

Item {Individual) (Individual} Slage 3 Total
JD JD JD JO

Balances at Central Banks 6,183 - - 6,183
Balances and deposits al banks and financial
institutions 51,056 - - 51,056
Direct credit facililies 3,841,683 7,681,326 63,626,284 75,149,293
Financial assets al amorlized cost 388,812 - - 388,812
Financlal assets at fair value through olher
comprehensive income - - - -
Letters of guaraniee and lelters of credit 701,130 324,715 - 1,025,845
Unutilized facllilles ceilings 700,224 107,249 - 807,473

Effect of implementation of International Financial Reporting Standard No (9) on deferred
tax AssetsiLiabilities:

Hem Deferred tax assels Deferred lax liabililies
JO JO
Increase in expected credil losses for assels 3,415,351 -

Reclassilicalion of financial assels

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Consfruction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related Interpretations
and it applies to all revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless those contracts are in
the scope of other standards. The new standard establishes a five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under iIFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring

goods or services to a customer.

The standard requires entities to exercise judgement, taking intc consideration all of the relevant
facts and circumstances when applying each step of the model to confracts with their customers.
The standard also specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and
the costs directly related to fulfiling a contract.

The Bank assessed that the impact of IFRS 15 is not material on the consolidated financial
statements of the Bank.




JORDAN AHLI BANK
NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations

The Interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it} on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date
on which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity
must determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

This Interpretation does not have any impact on the Bank's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including properly under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of invesiment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.

These amendments do not have any impact on the Bank's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment that address three main areas: the
effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction: the classification of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement features
for withholding tax obligations; and accounting where a modification to the terms and conditions of
a share-based payment transaction changes its classification from cash settled to equity settled.
On adoption, entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and other criteria are met.
If applicable - The Bank’s accounting policy for cash-setlled share based payments is consistent
with the approach clarified in the amendments. In addition, the Bank has no share-based payment
transaclion with net settlement features for withholding tax obligations and had not made any
modifications to the terms and conditions of its share-based payment transaction.

These amendments do not have any impact on the Bank's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing the new financial instrument
standard, IFRS 9, before implementing IFRS 17 insurance contracts, which replaces IFRS 4. The
amendments introduce two options for entities issuing contracts: a temporary exemption from
applying IFRS 9 and an overlay approach. These amendments are not relevant to the Bank.




JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
Its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments
clarify that the gain or loss resuiting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a
business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate or joint venture, is recognised
in full. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that do not constitute a
business, however, is recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate

or joint venture.
There is no impact on the Group consolidated financial statements resulted from implementing

those amendments.

{3-2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Segments Information

Segment business represents a group of assets and operations shared to produce products or risk
attributable services different from which related to other segments.

Geographic sector linked to present the products or the services in a specific economic
environment attributable for risk and other income different from which related to other sectors work

in other economic environment.

Recognition of Interest Income

The effeclive interest rate method

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate {EIR) method for all financial
instruments measured at amortized cost, financial insfruments designhated at FVTPL. Interest
income on interast bearing financial assets measured at FVOCI under IFRS 9. The EIR is the rate
that exaclly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and therefore, the amortized cost of the asset) is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Group
recognizes interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant
rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognizes the effect of potentially different
interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including
prepayments, penalty interest and charges).
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If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than
credit risk. The adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount
of the asset in the consolidated statement of financial position with an increase or reduction in
interest income. The adjustment is subsequently amortized through interest and similar income in

the consolidated statement of income.

Interest and similar income and expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, financial instruments designated at
FVOCI and FVTPL, interest income or expense is recorded using the EIR. The calculation takes
into account all of the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument
and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.

When the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced
by an impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognized using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

The Bank also holds investments in assets of countries with negative interest rates. The Bank
discloses interest paid on these assets as interest expense.

Fee and commission income
Fee income can be divided into the following two categories:
A. Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain period of time

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are accrued over that period. These
fees include commission income and private wealth and asset management fees, custody and

other management fees.
B. Fee income forming an integral part of the corresponding financial instrument

Fees that the Bank considers to be an integral part of the corresponding financial instruments

include:
loan origination fees, loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down and other

credit
related fees.
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Financial Instruments — Initial Recognition

Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans and advances to customers and
balances due to customers, are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades:
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place. Loans and advances to customers are
recognized when funds are transferred to the customers' accounts. The Group recognizes
halances due to customers when funds are transferred to the Group.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms
and the business model for managing the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured
at their fair value, except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at FVTPL,
transaction costs are added to, or subtracted from, this amount. Trade receivables are measured
at the transaction price. When the fair value of financial instruments at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price, the Group accounts for the Day 1 profit or loss, as described below.

Day 1 of profit or loss

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair
value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the
Group recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net trading income.
In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable,
the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognized
in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognized.
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Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Group classifies its financial assets (Debt Instruments) based on the business model for
managing the assets and the asset's contractual terms, measured at either:

+  Amortized cost
+ FVOCI
+ FVTPL

The Group classifies and measures its derivative and trading portfolio at FVTPL. The Group may
designate financial instruments at FVTPL, if so doing eliminates or significantly reduces
measurement or recognition inconsistencies.

Financial liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are measured at
amortized cost or at FVTPL when they are held for trading and derivative instruments or the fair

value designation is applied.
Financial Assets and Liabilities

Due from banks, loans and advances to customers and financial investments at amortized cost

Before 1 January 2018, due from banks and loans and advances to customers, included non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that were not quoted in an active
market, other than those:

+ That the Group intended to sell immediately or in the near term

» That the Group, upon initial recognition, designated as at FVTPL or as available-for-sale

«  For which the Group may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than
because of credit deterioration, which were designated as available-for-sale.

From 1 January 2018, the Group only measures due from banks, loans and advances to customers
and other financial investments at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

« The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows
+ The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest {SPP!) on the principal amount outstanding.

The details of these conditions are outlined below.

-11-
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Business model assessment

The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of
financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Group’s business model! is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher
level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

« How the performance of the business model and the financiat assets held within that business

model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel

» Therisks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

» How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is
based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

+ The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Group’s

assessment

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking "worst
case' or 'slress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a
way that is different from the Group’s original expectations, the Group does not change the
classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such
information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The SPPI test

As a second step of its classification process the Group assesses the contractual terms of financial
to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

'Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments
of principal or amortization of the premium/discount}.
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The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the
consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPP| assessment, the Group
applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset
is denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility
in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise 10
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding.
In such cases, the financial asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.

Derivatives recorded at fair value through profit or loss

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:

« Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument
price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit
index, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial variable, it is not specific
to a party to the contract (i.e., the 'underlying’).

« It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be
required for other types of contracts expected to have a similar response to changes in market
factors.

« lItis settled at a future date.

The Group enters into derivative transactions with various counterparties. These include interest
rate swaps, futures and cross-currency swaps. Derivatives are recorded at fair value and carried
as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Changes
in the fair value of derivatives are included in net trading income unless hedge accounting is

applied.

Debt instruments at FVOCI

The Group applies the new category under IFRS 9 of debt instruments measured at FVOC| when
both of the following conditions are met:

+  The instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets
+ The contractual terms of the financial assef meet the SPPI test

FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due
to changes in fair value recognized in OCI. Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognized in profit or loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortized
cost. Where the Group holds more than one investment in the same security, they are deemed to
be disposed of on a first—in first-out basis. On derecognition, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognized in OCI are reclassified from OCI to profit or loss
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Equity instruments at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group occasionally elects to classify irrevocably some of its equity
investments as equity instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition of definition of Equity
under |AS 39 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification
is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit. Dividends are recognized
in profit or loss as other operating income when the right of the payment has been established,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not
subject to an impairment assessment.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and
have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value under IFRS 9. Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL
upon initia! recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such designation is determined
on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

+ The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them

on a different basis

Or

« The liabilities {(and assets until 1 January 2018 under IAS 39) are part of a group of financial
liabilities (or financial assets, or both under IAS 39), which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or

investment strategy

Or

« The liabilities (and assets until 1 January 2018 under IAS 39) containing one or more embedded
derivatives, unless they do not significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be
required by the contract, or it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first
considered that separation of the embedded derivatives is prohibited
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Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the
exception of movements in fair value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the
Group's own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded in the Own credit reserve through
OC! and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments
designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or interest expense, respectively, using the EIR,
taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part
of instrument. Interest earnt on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is recorded
using contractual interest rate. Dividend income from equity instruments measured at FVTPL is
recorded in profit or loss as other operating income when the right to the payment has been

established.

Financial quarantees, letters of credit and unutilized facilities ceilings

The Group issues financial guarantees, letters of credit and loan commitments.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized in the consolidated financial statements (within other
liabilities) at fair value, being the premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's
liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognized less
cumulative amortization recognized in the consolidated statement of incoms, and — under [AS 39
— the best estimate of expenditure required to setlle any financial obligation arising as a result of
the guarantee, or — under IFRS 9 — an ECL provision.

The premium received is recognized in the consolidated statement of income net of fees and
commission income on a straight line basis over the life of the guarantee.

Undrawn loan commitments and letters of credits are commitments under which, over the duration
of the commitment, the Group is required to provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer.
Similar to financial guarantee contracts, under IAS 39, a provision was made if they were an
onerous contract but, from 1 January 2018, these contracts are in the scope of the ECL

requirements.

The nominal contractual value of financial guarantees, letters of credit and undrawn loan
commitments, where the loan agreed to be provided is on market terms, are not recorded on in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group occasionally issues loan commitments at below market interest rates drawdown. Such
commitments are subsequently measured at the higher of the amount of the ECL and the amount
initially recognized less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognized.
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Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Group does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the Group acquires, disposes of, or terminates a
business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Derecognition due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Group derecognizes a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and
conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the
difference recognized as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not
already been recorded. The newly recognized loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL

measurement purposes.

When assessing whether or not to derecognize a loan to a customer, amongst others, the Group
considers the following factors:

+ Change in currency of the loan
+ Introduction of an equity feature

+ Change in counterpariy
+  If the modification is such that the instrument would no longer meet the SPPI criterion

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does
not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the
Group records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already

been recorded.

Derecagnition other than for substantial modification

A. Financial assefs

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
have expired. The Group also derecognizes the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial
asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

- 16 -




JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The Group has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

» The Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset

Or

« |t retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass—through’ arrangement

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Group retains the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients’), when all of the following

three conditions are met:

+ The Bank has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collecled
equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full
recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates

+ The Bank cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual

recipients
» The Bank has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without

material delay. In addition, the Group is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for
investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the period between
the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

» The Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset

Or

+ The Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Bank considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability
unitaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has

retained conirol of the asset, the asset continues to be recognized only to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement, in which case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The
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transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Bank has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration

the Bank could be required to pay.

if continuing involvement takes the form of a written or purchased option (or both) on the transferred
asset, the continuing involvement is measured at the value the Bank would be required to pay upon
repurchase. In the case of a written put option on an asset that is measured at fair value, the extent
of the entity's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset
and the option exercise price.

B. Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
Overview of the ECL principles

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Bank’s loan loss impairment method by
replacing IAS 39's incurred loss approach with a forward-looking ECL approach. From 1 January
2018, the Group has been recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other
debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, in this section all referred to as 'financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject

to impairment under IFRS 9.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the
lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk
since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss.

The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12mECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis,
depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.
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The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period,
of whether a financia! instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial

instrument.

Based on the above process, the Bank groups its financial assets into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage
. 3, as described below:

Stage 1: When financial assets are first recognized, the Group recognizes an allowance based
on 12mECLs. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved
and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a financial asset has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the Group records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities,
where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3 Financial assets considered credit-impaired. The Bank records an allowance for the
LTECLs.

For financial assels for which the Bank has no reasonable expectations of recovering either the

entire outstanding amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced. This is considered a (partial) derecognition of the financial asset.

The calculation of ECLs

The Bank calculates ECLs based on a three probability-weighted scenarios to measure the
expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the
difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The machinery of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

PD The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period.

EAD The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking
into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including
repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise,
expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed

payments.
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LGD The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default
occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the
realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

When estimating the ECLs, the Group considers three scenarios (a base case, an upside and a
downside). Each of these is associated with different PDs, EADs and LGDs. When relevant, the
assessment of multiple scenarios also incorporates how defauited loans are expected to be
recovered, including the probability that the loans will cure and the value of collateral or the amount
that might be received for selling the asset.

With the exception of credit cards and other revolving facilities, the maximum period for which the
credit losses are determined is the contractual life of a financial instrument unless the Group has
the legal right to call it earlier.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification
losses or gains that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset's gross carrying value.

The mechanism of the ECL method are summarized below:;

Stage 1: The 12mECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the
ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporling date. The Group
calculates the 12mECL allowance based on the expeclation of a default
occurring in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected
12-month default probabilities are applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied
by the expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to the original
EIR. This calculation is made for each of the three scenarios, as explained

above.

Stage 2: When a financial asset has shown a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the Group records an allowance for the LTECLs. The
mechanics are similar to those explained above, including the use of
muitiple scenarios, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of
the instrument. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an
approximation to the original EIR.
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Stage 3 For financial assets which are considered credit-impaired, the Group
recognizes the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The method
is similar to that for Stage 2 assels, with the PD set at 100% and with
higher LGD than the first two stages.

Loan commitments
and letler of credit When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Group

esfimates the expected portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn
down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the present value
of the expecled shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn down, based
on a probability-weighting of the three scenarios. The expected cash
shortfalls are discounted at an approximation to the expected EIR on the

loan.

Financial guarantee

contracts The Group’s liability under each guaraniee is measured at the higher of
the amount initially recognized less cumulative amortization recognized in
the consolidated statement of income, and the ECL provision. For this
purpose, the Group estimates ECLs based on the present value of the
expected payments o reimhurse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs.
The shortfalls are discounted by the risk-adjusted interest rate relevant to
the exposure. The calculation is made using a probability-weighting of the
three scenarios. The ECLs related to financial guarantee contracts are
recognized within other liabilities.

Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these
financial assets in the consolidated statement of financial position, which remains at fair value.
Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the assets were measured at
amortized cost is recognized in OCI as an accumulated impairment amount, with a corresponding
charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss recognized in OCI is recycled fo the profit and loss
upon derecognition of the assets.

Credit cards and other revolving facilities

The Group’s product offering includes a variety of corporate and retail overdraft and credit cards
facilities, in which the Group has the right to cancel and/or reduce the facilities with one day's
notice. The Group does not limit its exposure to credit losses to the contraclual notice pericd, but,
instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Group's expectations of the customer
behavior, its likelihood of default and the Group’s future risk mitigation procedures, which could
include reducing or cancelling the facilities.
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The ongoing assessment of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for revolving
facilities is simitar to other lending products. This is based on shifts in the customer’s internal credit

grade.

The interest rate used to discount the ECLs for credit cards is based on the effective interest rate.

The calculation of ECLs, including the estimation of the expected period of exposure and discount
rate is made, on an individual basis for corporate and on a collective basis for retail products. The
collective assessments are made separately for portfolios of facilities with simitar credit risk

characteristics.

Forward looking information

In its ECL models, the Group relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic
inputs, such as:

«  GDP growth

*  Unemployment rates

« Central Bank base rates

+ Oil price indices

+ Financial market performance indices

The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may not always capture all characteristics of the
market at the date of the consclidated financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments
or overlays are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when such differences are

significantly material.

Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Group seeks to use collateral, where possible.
The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real
estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as
netting agreements. The Group's accounting policy for collateral assigned to it through its lending
arrangements under IFRS 9 is the same is it was under IAS 39. Collateral, unless repossessed, is
not recorded on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position. However, the fair value
of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception
and re-assessed periodically. However, some collateral, for example, cash or securities relating to
margining requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Group uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as
collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are valued
using models. Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data provided by
third parties such as mortgage brokers, or based on housing price indices.
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Collateral repossessed

The Group’s accounting policy under IFRS 9 remains the same as it was under IAS 39. The Group's
policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its internal operations or
should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to their
relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original
secured asset. Assets for which selling is determined to be a better option are transferred to assets
held for sale at their fair value (if financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial
assets at the repossession date in, line with the Group's policy.

In its normal course of business, the Group does not physically repossess properties or other
assets in its retail portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at auction, to
settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of
this practice, the residential properties under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the

balance sheet.

Write-offs

The Group’s accounting policy under IFRS 9 remains the same as it was under IAS 39. Financial
assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has stopped pursuing
the recovery. If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the
difference is first treated as an addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross
carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to credit loss expense.

Modified loans

The Group sometimes makes concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans as a
response to the borrower’s financial difficulties, (rather than taking possession or to otherwise
enforce collection of collateral.) The Group considers a loan forborne when such concessions or
modifications are provided as a result of the borrower's present or expected financial difficulties
and the Group would not have agreed to them if the borrower had been financially heaithy.
(Indicators of financial difficulties include defaults on covenants, or significant concerns raised by
the Credit Risk Department). Forbearance may involve extending the payment arrangements and
the agreement of new loan conditions. (Once the terms have been renegofiated, any impairment is
measured using the original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms). It is the Group's
policy to monitor forborne loans to help ensure that future payments continue to be likely to occur.
Derecoghnition decisions and classification between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are determined on a case-
by-case basis. If these procedures identify a loss in relation to a loan, it is disclosed and managed
as an impaired Stage 3 forborne asset until it is collected or written off.
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Leasing contracts

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases:

1. The Bank as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2. The Bank as a lessee:

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as assets of the Company at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum future lease
payments. The finance lease obligation is recorded at the same value. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance costs and reduction of the lease liabilities so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining batance of the liability. Finance costs are charged directly to the

consolidated statement of income.

Operafing lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Investments in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control

or joint control over those policies.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those
necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.

The Bank's investments in its associates are accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment in an associates initially recognised at cost, the carrying
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets of

the associates since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associates is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortised nor individually tested for impairment.
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The consolidated income statement reflects the Bank's share of the resuits of operations of the
associates. Any change in other comprehensive income of those investees is presented as part of
the Bank's other comprehensive income (OCI). In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associates, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and the associates are eliminated to the extent of the interest in

the associates.

The aggregate of the BAnk's share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on the face of the
consolidated income statement within operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and
non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate.

The financial statements of the associates are prepared for the same reporting period as the Bank.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the

Bank.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any impairment
loss in its value, Moreover Property and Equipment (except for land) are depreciated according to
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives when ready for use of these assets using

the following annual rates.
%

Buildings 2
Equipment furniture and fixtures 9-15
Vehicles 20
Computer i2-15
Others 2-12

When the carrying amount of property and equipment exceeds their recoverable value, assets are
written down and impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

The useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed at the end of each year, In case the
expected useful life is different from what was determined before the change in estimate is recorded
in the following years being a change in estimates. :

Property and equipment are derecognized when disposed or when there is no expected future
benefit from their use or disposal.

-25-




JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Impairment of non-financial assets -

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Bank makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
targely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of
an assef exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell,

an appropriate valuation model is used.

These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

intangible Assets

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded at cost, and represents the excess amount paid to acquire or purchase the
investment in an associate or a subsidiary on the date of the transaction over the fair value of the
net assets of the associale or subsidiary at the acquisition date. Goodwill resuiting from the
investment in a subsidiary is recorded as a separate item as part of intangible assets, while goodwill
resulting from the investment in an associated company constitutes part of the investment in that

company.

Goodwill is distributed over the cash generating units for the purpose of testing the impairment in
its value.

The value of goodwill is tested for impairment on the date of the consolidated financial statements.
Good will value is reduced when there is evidence that its value has declined or the recoverable
value of the cash generating units is less than book value. The decline in the values is recoded in

the consolidated statement of income as impairment loss.
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Other Intangible Assets

Other infangible assets acquired through mergers are stated at fair value at the date of acquisition,
while other intangible assets (not acquired through mergers) are recorded at cost.

Intangible assets are to be classified on the basis of either definite or indefinite useful life. Intangible
assets with definite useful economic lives are amortized over their useful lives using the straight
line method, and recorded as an expense in the consolidated statement of income. Intangible
assets with indefinite lives are reviewed in statement income for impairment as of the consolidated
financial statements date, and impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

Intangible assets resulting from the banks operations are not capitalized. They are rather recorded
in the cansolidated statement of income in the same period.

Any indications of impairment in the value of intangible assets as of the consolidated financial
statements date are reviewed. Furthermore, the estimated useful lives of the impaired intangible
assets are reassessed, and any adjustment is made in the subsequent period.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has an obligation as of the date of the consclidated
financial statements as a result of past events, the obligation is likely to be settled, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provision for employees’ end-of-service indemnities

Provision for employees’ end-of-service indemnities is estimated in accordance with the prevailing
rules and regulations in the countries in which the Group operates. The expense for the year is
recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Indemnities paid to employees are reduced

from the provision.

Income Taxes

Income tax expenses represent current and deferred taxes for the year.

Income tax expense is measured on the basis of taxable income. Taxable income differs from
income reported in the consolidated financial statements, as the latter includes non-taxable
revenue, tax expenses not deductible in the current year but deductible in subsequent years,
accumulated losses approved by tax authorities and items not accepted for tax purposes or subject

to tax.
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Capital Cost of Issuing or Buying the Bank's Shares

Cost arising from the issuance or purchase of the bank's shares are charged to retained earnings
(net of the tax effect of these costs if any). If the shares issuance or purchase process is
incomplete these costs are recorded as expenses in the consolidated statement of income.

Assets under Management

These represent the accounts managed by the Group on behalf of its customers, but do not
represent part of the Group's assets. The fees and commissions on managing these accounts are
taken to the consolidated statement of income. Moreover, a provision is taken for the decline in the
value of capital-guaranteed portfolios managed on behalf of its customers.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilittes are offset, and the net amount is presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position only when there is a legal right to offset the recognized
amounts, and the Group intends to either settle them on a net basis or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously

Foreclosed assets

Such assets are those that have been the subject of foreclosure by the Group, and are initially
recognized among “other assets" at the foreclosure value or fair value whichever is least.

At the date of the consolidated financial statements, foreclosed assets are revalued individually
(fair value less selling cost); any decline in fair value is recognized in the consolidated statement
of income. Any subsequent increase in value is recognized only to the extent that it does not exceed
the previously recognized impairment losses.

Repurchase and Resale Agreements

Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase them at a future date continue to be
recognized in the consolidated financial statements as a result of the bank’s continuous control
over these assets and as the related risk and benefits are transferred to the Bank upon occurrence.
They also continue to be measured in accordance with the adopted accounting policies. Amounts
received against these contracts are recorded within liabilities under borrowed funds. The
difference between the sale price and the repurchase price is recognized as an interest expense
amortized over the contract period using the effective interest rate method.

228 -




JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Purchased assets with corresponding commitment to sell at a specific future date are not
recognized in the consolidated financial statements because the bank has no control over such
assets and the related risks and benefits are not transferred to the Bank upon occurrence.
Payments related to these contracts are recoded under deposits with banks and other financial
institutions or loans and advances in accordance with the nature of each case. The difference
between the purchase price and resale price is recoded as interest revenue amortized over the life
of the contract using the effective interest rate method.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the date of the consolidated financial statements using the exchange rate prevailing
at the date of the consolidated financial statement. Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency
translation are recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

Non-monetary items recorded at historical cost are translated according to the exchange at fair
value rate prevailing at the transaction date, using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of

evaluation.

Differences resulting from the translation of non-monetary assets and liabilities at fair value
denominated in foreign currency, such as equity shares, are recorded as part of the change in the
fair value using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of evaluation..

Fair value

The Bank measures financial instruments is at fair value at each financial statements date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either, in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence

of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic

best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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The Bank uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

« Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
+ Level2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
+ Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Bank
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Bank has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair

value hierarchy as explained above
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with central banks and balances with
banks and financial institutions maturing within three months, less restricted funds and balances
owing to banks and financial institutions maturing within three months.

(3-3) USE OF ESTIMATES

» Provisions for impairment on direct credit facilities

In determining impairment of financial assets, judgement is required in the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows as well as an assessment of whether the credit risk on the financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and incorporation of forward-looking
information in the measurement of ECL.

The Bank computes the provision for impairment of financial assets according to the international
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and compares the outcome to the instructions of the Central
Bank of Jordan. Moreover, the strictest outcome that conforms to the (IFRSs) is used.

The Methodology of implementing international financial Reporting Standard No {9): Inputs,
and methods used in calculating expected credit loss:
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The implementation of default and its recording methods:

In order to classify accounts as non-performing loans (NPL), the Central Bank of Jordan (CBJ} or
the regulatory authorities in the host countries of the bank’s branches or its subsidiaries, whichever
is more stringent, are strictly complied with. The non-performing facilities are defined as credit

facilities that includes one or more of the following:

- The maturity of one installment or irregular payment of principal and/or interest of account for
90 days or more.

- The overdraft exceeding the Limit granted by (10%) or more for a period of (90) days or more

- Credit facilities that have expired on the expiry date of (90) days or more and have not been
renewed.

- Credit facilities granted to any client declared bankiupt or to any company declared under
liquidation.

- Credit facilities structured three times in a year.
- Current accounts that had been overdrawn for 90 days or more.

- Paid Guarantees on behalf of customers not credited to their accounts and their payments
matured for (90) days or more.

Bad Debt Management

1. Debt Treatment:

This should be done by approval of the Bank and taking into consideration the satisfaction of the
client and the guarantors. This type of treatment should ensure that the bank has the maximum
possible rights according to the status of the account, its guarantees, and sources of payment, An
acceptable period and the strengthening of guarantees and sources of payment if possible and the
settlements are approved in accordance with internal levels of Authority.

2. Grace Period

The bank may be forced to a grace period for certain clients after which the client is settled by
payment or re-scheduling. However, this method is not considered an effective treatment as it
keeps the client within the scope of non-performing loans. Therefore, the bank should not give the
client grace period after any payment default, only in exceptional circumstances which the
concerned department may determine. In this case, the grace period shall be for a short and
specific period in accordance with internal levels of Authority.

3. Legal Action, including enforcement of quarantees

The bank resorted to it when exhausted all the peaceable ways of collection and form a convection
that the collection of debt in this manner became the only way to ensure the bank to restore his

rights.
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Risk Rating System

Moody's Risk Analyst (MRA) platform is a robust, enterprise-wide credit risk management system
that collects, analyzes and stores financial and non-financial information providing a
comprehensive solution for managing and analyzing counter-party credit risk. It is a Browser-based
internal rating system that supports centralized management of credit risk assessment objectives.
The ultimate objective of the rating exercise is to categorize customers based on their risk profile.
The MRA standard model has been customized to the needs of the Bank.

First: System methodology
The rating methodology analyses key financial andfor non-financial, qualitative/subjective

parameters by combining the results of several components to assess and provide a risk rating
grade for each customer, based on a score in the range of 0 to 100, mapped to an equivalent

Rating.

Risk rating system consists of 3 basic models that are used by business division to analyze and
categorize customers by relying on financial and non-financial data of their customers. The system
allows the possibility of choosing one of three available models. The model is based on the
availability, accuracy and clarity of the financial statements submitted. In addition to a set of
questions specific to the customer's activity , the three model as per the following:

» Fundamental Analysis- Financial Only

This model used in case of clear, sufficient and detailed financial statements (audited or unaudited)
that can be relied upon to reflect the accurate financial position of the customer. Quantitative
information will formulate the largest weight in classification process.

» SME Rating Model- (Financial Statements Provided)

This model used in the case of the availability of Non detailed financial data and has a less relative
importance in the classification process and more importance is given to the qualitative aspects of

the classification.

+ SME Rating Model- (No Financial Statements Provided) :

This model is used in the absence of financial data and classification will depend entirely on
qualitative Data.
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Second: Scope of Application
Rating Mode! is used for Corporates & SMEs Porifolios in Jordan, Palestine and Cyprus

Third: Definition/key features for ORR

Risk Grade

Definitions/ Key
Features

Description (Definition)

Excellent

Exceptional business credit, judged to be of the highest quality, with
minimal credit risk. Superior asset quality and financial capacily,
excellent and proven management; market leader.

Strong

Very good business credit with very good asset quality, consistently
strong liquidily and debl capacity; highly regarded in the industry with
strong market share.

Good

Good business credit considered upper-medium grade, subject to low
credit risk; good assel quality, strong liquidity and debt capacity
.Company is above average size and holds a good position in the
industry.

Satisfactory

Acceptable business credit subject to moderate credit risk, considered
medium grade and as such may possess certain higher than average
risk characteristics. Company has demonstrated adequate to good
performance.

Adequate

Average to below average business credit subject to moderate credit
risk, considered medium grade and as such may possess certain
higher risk characteristics. Company has demonstrated adequate
performance '

Marginal

Below average business credit and subject to high credit risk.
Company s likely a lower tier competitor in its industry. Acceptable
but requiring close monitering and support of strong risk mitigates.

Vulnerable

Weak business credit: Judged to be of poor standing and subject to
very high credit risk .Constitutes undue and unwarranted credit risk.
Currently in performing status and not to the point of juslifying a
substandard classification (Watch list.

Sub-standard

In Default (Substandard): Unacceptable business credit with normal
payment in jeopardy.

Doubtful

In Default (Doubtful): Full repayment questionable. Serious problems
to the point where partial loss of principal is likely.

10

Loss

In Default (Loss): Expected loss. Such an asset may have recovery
but not to the point of avoiding loss classification
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System Workflow

The early identification of customers with potential problem loans is essential to the successful
management of credit risk in the Bank's porifolio. The earlier a problem customer is identified, the
more likely corrective action will be successful in preventing losses.

Credit operation department is responsible to start, fill out all kinds of related data to the concerned
customers to identify and point out the credit risk and weaknesses associated with individual
customers that falling under their supervision.

Credit department review the accuracy and credibility of the inputs and rating class entered by
credit operation department and compare the inputs with the credit studies

Risk department is responsible to manage the system including the Internal Models and related
approved parameters, Generating reports on regular basis for tracking and reporting purposes

The Mechanism Adopted to Calculate (ECL)

» Based on the requirement of the new standard, ECL calculation model for Exposures/debt
instruments has been applied on JAB Branches, Subsidiaries and foreign branches in
accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank and the best international practices in this

regard.

« Credit risk and expected credit loss calculation was calculated for each individual (credit exposure
f debt instrument), not on collective basis approach.

» The mathematical model was used to calculate expected credit losses as follows:

Expected credit loss ECL = Probability of Default (PD%) X Exposure at default (EAD) X
Loss Given Default (LGD%)

Probability of Default {PD)

« Transition Matrixes were built for each segment in Bank by using the historical data on exposure,
rating grade to build the PiT Matrixes { Moody’s Model was the base to generate PiT matrixes
and similar risk level rating buckets were merged to obtain more stable observed default rate),
for Retail Segment the DPD historical Data was the base to generate PiT Matrixes.

» Based on the nature of segment Economic Shocks were applied on the GDP & Unemployment
rates changes compared to the last 10 years through statistical model to construct the future PiT,
therefore TTC matrixes were constructed by blending the effect of Economic shocks and distance
from the long term default rate (LTDR) which reflects the last five years average default rate.

« Same methodology was used to build Matrixes for Banks & Sovereigns over different regions in
the world.

Exposure at Default

e EAD is the credit Limit or outstanding Balance whichever is higher & incase of unulilized fimit
applying CCF of 100%. Present value (PV) of cash flows over the life time of exposure has been
taken into consideration by using the effective interest rate ( EIR ).
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Loss Given Default (LGD )

¢ L GD methodology, recovery rate approach preceded by a deep assessment of many aspects
related to the bank internal process, Default management and workout. Bank applied average
recovery rate period approach (Average 3 years) for unsecured portfolio on banking segments
{CORPs, SMEs & Retail} to construct the actual LGD for each type of segment, taking into
consideration all recoveries were discounted based on contracts interest rate to the value at

default date .

+ Howsever Managerial LGD for secured portfolio / portion were applied based on type of collateral
and applying of Hair Cut per each type of collaterals as per the CBJ instructions.

+ Regulatory Rates ( FIRB) of 45% were applied for some segment due to the small size volatile
portfolios.

inancial Assets in Scope

Under the methodology used, the following credit exposures and financial instruments have been
subject to the expected credit loss in line with CBJ instructions and& IFRS 9 requirements:

Loans and Credit Facilities {Direct and Indirect)

The expected credit losses were calculated by considering the credit Limits or the outstanding
Balance whichever is higher to determine the Exposure at Default { EAD ). Present value (PV) of
cash flows over the life of the exposure has been taken into consideration by using the effective
inferest rate { EIR ) and discounted at time .

To Consider the Probability of Default (PD), Transition Matrixes were built for each segment in
Bank by using the historical data on exposure, rating grade to build the PiT Matrixes ( Moody's
Model was the base to generate PiT matrixes and similar risk level rating buckets were merged to
obtain more stable observed default rate}, for Retail Segment the DPD historical Data was the base

fo generate PiT Matrixes.

Based on the nature of segment Economic Shocks were applied on the GDP & Unemployment
rates changes compared to the last 10 years through statistical model to construct the future PiT,
therefore TTC matrixes were constructed by blending the effect of Economic shocks and distance
from the long term default rate (LTDR) which reffects the last five years average default rate.

For LGD, Bank applied average recovery rate period approach for unsecured portfolio on banking
segments (CORPs, SMEs and Retail ) to construct the actual LGD for each type of segment, taking
into consideration all recoveries were discounted based on contracts interest rate to the value at

default date.

However Managerial LGD for secured portfolio / portion were applied based on type of collateral
after applying of Hair Cut .
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Debt Instruments Carried at Amortized cost or Carried at Fair Value Through other
Comprehensive iIncome {OCI

The expected credit losses were calculated using the Outstanding Balance & Accrued interest on
the Instrument of each reporting date to determine the Exposure at Default ( EAD ). Probability of
default was calculated using Transition Matrixes that was built for each type of debt instrument.
Regulatory LGD ratio of 45% was used for these kind of instruments ( FIRB Ratio) .

Present value (PV) of cash flows over the life of the debt instrument has been taken into
consideration using the effective interest rate (EIR} and discounted at time .

Note : Based on the CBJ Regulations, 0% Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is applied for local and
foreign currency financial assets of Jordan Governmental & CBJ.

Credit Exposures on Banks and Financial Institutions

The expected credit losses were calculated using the Qutstanding Balance of ach reporting date
to determine the Exposure at Default ( EAD. Probability of default was calculated using Transition
Matrixes that was built for banks and financial institutions based on Geographical
distribution.(Locally, Regionally & International).

Regulatory LGD ratio of 45% was used for these kind of placements { FIRB Ratio).
Staging Criteria

All Credit Exposures / Debt Instruments that are subject to expected credit loss are subject to
certain determinants as an indication that they have a significant effect to increase credit risk,
Therefore, Shifting to stages has been adopted by using the following methodology :

Staging Criteria / Shift to Staging Criteria / Shift to
Variable Stage 2 Stage 3

Customers, which are having 2
grades deterioration in their final
rating compared to their initial
rating/ On Internal Rating Model

Non-performing loans
Change in Credit Rating | The significant or expected
for Exposure / Debt|decline in the external Credit | Bankruptcies or for companies
Instrument Rating under liquidation

Lack of credit rating for credit
exposure [/ debt instrument

Un Rated Exposures subject to internal credit rating
Past due days Past dues above 60 Days
Account Status Walch List Accounts
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Governing the application of the international standard

Adopting corporate governance is a key to success, Therefore JAB has adopted the directives of
the Corporate Governance in line with the directives of the Central Bank of Jordan and the best
international practices recommended by the Basel Committee in this regard.

Also corporate governance one of the means to provide the proper and appropriate tools and
means for the Board of Directors and senior executive management to reach the achievement of

strategic objectives and ensure an effective working environment.

The Bank to make sure its financial reports were consistent with the IFRS9 requirements. To that
end, an agreement was concluded with Prometeia for implementing software across Jordan
Branches, Forging Branches and its subsidiaries .

To ensure that the application of the International Financial Reporting Standard in effect, the
following is the responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Senior Executive Management In

this regard :
Board of Directors

+ Define the strategic objectives of the bank, and guide & monitor the executive management to
prepare strategies & plans of action that are consistent with these strategies.

e Evaluate existing infrastructure and make decisions regarding the changes or improvements
required to ensure that the calculation of expected credit losses in line with relevant regulations.

s Ensuring through the committees emanating from the Board to supervise the senior executive
management and make sure the availability of internal control and control systems that provide
the Bank's policies, plans and procedures, and verify compliance with the Bank's internal
policies, international standards and related legislation covering the activity of applying the
international standard.

+ Take measures to ensure effective control over the proper application of the standard and the
protection of the systems used in the application.

e Adoption of appropriate policies and procedures for the application of the new standard.

Executive Management
¢ Provide the apprapriate infrastructure and recommendations on the changes or improvements

that help to apply the standard accurately and comprehensively, make sure to include a
qualified staff, adequate database in terms of accuracy, comprehensiveness and appropriate
management information system.

« Distribution of tasks and responsibilities to the concerned parties in the process of applying the
International Accounting Standard.
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e To assess the impact of applying the International Accounting Standard on the financial position
of the Bank from the quantitative and qualitative framework.

¢ suitability for the application of the standard.

» Prepare a detailed work plan to implement the standard and study the quantitative impact on
the bank and adhere to the time frame specified by the regulator.

¢ Make sure to reflect the impact of the new standard on Bank strategy and pricing Methodology.
Ensuring the participation of the Bank's various concerned departments with the proper

compliance with the

(4) CASH AND BALANCES WiTH CENTRAL BANKS

The details of this item are as following:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD

Cash in vaults 42 814,521 47,393,687
Balances at the Central Bank :
Current and call accounts 10,607,440 16,136,622
Time and notice 60,668,839 76,595,500
Statutory cash reserve 107,237,188 117,488,811
Certificates of deposit 26,900,000 31,100,000
Total Balances at the Central Bank 205,413,467 241,320,933
Less: ECL 6,183 -
Total CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS 205,407,284 241,320,933

248,221,805 288,714,620

Total

Except for cash reserves with central banks, there are no restricted balances as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017.

There are no balances, matured in more than three months as at 31 December 2018 (31 December

2017 : JD 270,305).

The classification of gross balance with central banks according to the Group’s internal credit

rating is as follows:;

2018 2017
Stage 1 Stage 2
ltem Individual Individual Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JO
Low risk / performing _ 205,413,467 - - 205,413,467 241,320,933
Tolal 205,413,467 - - 205,413,467 241,320,933
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The movement on balances with central banks is as follows:
31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD
Balance as of 1 January 2018 241,320,933 - - 241,320,933
New balances for the year 79,184,462 - - 79,184,462
Repaid balances (115,091,928} - - {115,091,928)
- - 205,413,467

Total balance at the end of year 205,413,467

The movement on the provision for expected credit losses for balances and deposits with central

banks is as follows:

31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD
Balance as of 1 January 2018 - - - -
Effect resulting from implementation of
IFRS 9 9,348 - - 9,348
Balance as of 1 January 2018 {restated) 9,348 - - 9,348
ECL for new balances during the year 853 - - 853
Recoveries from ECL related to repaid
balances {4,018) - - (4,018)
Total balance at the and of year 6,183 - - 6,183
{5) BALANCES AT BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Banks and financial inslitulions
Local Foreign Tolal
31 31 3 31

December December 31 Dacember December December 31 December

item 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
JD JD JD JD JD JD

Current and term accounis 65,610 169,953 38,367,245 54,950,754 38,432,855 55,120,707
Deposits matures in 3 months
or less 23,551,506 - 111,610,807 122,304,088 135,162,313 122 304,088
Total 23,617,116 169,953 149,978,052 177,264,842 173,595,168 177,424,795
Less: ECL charged for the year 3,043 - 23,939 - 26,982 -

23,614,073 169,953 149,954,113 177,254,842 173,568,186 177,424,795

- Non-interest-bearing balances held at banks and financial institutions amounted to JD
38,432,855 as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: JD 55,120,707).

- There are no restricted balances as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017.
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The classification of gross balances with banks and financial institutions according to the Group’s
internal credit rating is as follows:

2018 2017
Stage 1 Stage 2
ltem Individual Individual Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
Acceptable risk
{performing 173,595,168 - - 173,595,168 177,424,795
Total 173,595,168 - - 173,695,168 177,424,795

The movement on balances at banks and financial institutions is as follows:

31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Ingividual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD
Balance as of 1 January 2018 177,424,795 - - 177,424,795
New balances for the year 123,540,259 - - 123,540,259
Repaid balances (127,369,886) .- - (127,369,886)
Total balance at the end of year 173,595,168 - - 173,595,168

The movement on the provision for expected credit losses for balances with banks and financial
institutions is as follows:

31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD
Balance as of 1 January 2018 - - - -
Effect resulting from implementation of IFRS 9 10.597 . R 10,597
Balance as of 1 January 2018 (restated) 10,597 - - 10,597
ECL for new balances during the year 18,168 - - 18,168
Recoveries from ECL related fo repaid balances {1,783) - - (1,783)
Total balance at the end of year 26,982 - - 26,982
(6) DEPOSITS AT BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Banks and financial institutions
Local Foreign Tolal
31 31 31 31
December  December 31 December  December 31 December  December
ltem 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
JD JD JD JD JD JD

Deposits mature in:
From 3 months to 6 months 5,000,000 5,000,000 14,400,855 - 19,400,855 5,000,000
- - 37,798 37,813 37,798 37,813

Frem 9 months to 1 year

5,000,000 5,000,000 14,438,653 37,813 19,438,653 5,037,813
Less: ECL 6,877 - 17,197 - 24,074 -
Tolal 4,993,123 5,000,000 14,421,456 37,813 19,414,579 5,037,813
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There are no restricted deposits balances as at 31 December 2018 and as at 31 December

2017.

The classification of gross deposits at banks and financial institution according to the Group's

internal credit rating is as follows:

2018 2017
Stage 1 Stage 2
tem Individual Individual Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
Acceptable risk /
performing 19,438,653 - - 19,438,653 5,037,813
Total 19,438,653 - - 19,438,653 5,037,813
The movement on deposits at banks and financial institutions is as follows:
31 December 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD
Balance as of 1 January 2018 5,037,813 - - 5,037,813
Repaid balances 14,400,855 - - 14,400,855
Foreign exchange adjustments (15) - - {15)
Total balance atthe end of year 19,438,653 - - 19,438,653

The movement on the provision for expected credit losses for deposits at banks and financial

institutions is as follows:

31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JO JD

Balance as of 1 January 2018 - - - -
Effect resulting from implementation of
IFRS 9 6,743 - - 6,743
Balance as of 1 January 2018 (restated) 6,743 - - 6,743
ECL for new balances during the year 17,331 - - 17,331
Total balance at the end of year 24,074 - - 24,074

{7) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

This item consists of the following:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
Companies shares-Quoted - 954,381
Total - 954,381

- On 1 January 2018 the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were reclassified to
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.
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(8) DIRECT CREDIT FACILITIES — NET

The details of this item are as follows:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD

Individuals (Retail)
Overdrafts 2,661,039 722,165
Loans and hills * 332,902,737 357,204,796
Credit Cards 11,397,510 12,897,176
Real Estate Loans 322,816,366 308,677,814
Corporate Customers
Overdrafts 170,961,542 124,265,942
Loans and bills * 475,293,402 583,694,891
Small and medium enterprises “SMEs”
Overdrafts 60,173,422 58,377,822
Loans and bills * 123,181,791 133,984,680
Governmental and public sectors 21,125,063 22,695,285
Total 1,520,516,872 1,602,520,571
Less: Provision for expected credit losses (75,149,293) (90,477,858)
Less: Suspended interests {20,857,390) (28,120,328)

Direct credit facilities, net

1,424,510,189

1,483,922,385

*  Net of interest and commission received in advance amounted to JD 16,537,152 as at 31
December 20118 (31 December 2017: JD 19,695,650).

- Non-performing credit facilities amounted to JD 103,639,286 as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017; JD 141,574,867), representing 6.82% as at 31 December 2018 (31 December
2017: 8.83%) of total direct credit facilities.

- Non-performing credit facilities, net of suspended interests and commissions, amounted to JD
88,179,183 as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: JD 116,474,549), representing
5.86% as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: 7.38%) of total direct credit facitities
excluding the suspended interests.

- Non-performing credit facilities transferred to off consolidated financial position items,
amounted to JD 97,402,837 as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: JD 60,927,033),
Moreover, these credit facilities are fully covered with the suspended interests and provisions.

- There are no credit facilities granted to and guaranteed by the Jordanian government as at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017.
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The classification of gross batances relating to corporate facilities according to the Group’s

internal credit rating is as follows:

2018 2017
Slage i Slage 2
ltem Individual Individual Stage 3 Total Tolal
JD JD JD JD JD
Low risk / performing 95,154,667 - - 95,154,687 58,158,215
Acceptable risk / performing 419,363,069 90,236,039 - 509,599,108 569,178,806
Non-Performing:
Substandard - - 5,558,633 5,558,633 -
Doubtful - 88,181 83,181 5,168,534
Loss - - 35,854,335 35,854,335 75,455,278
Total 514,517,756 90,236,039 41,501,148 646,254,944 707,960,833
The movement on corporate facilities at year end is as follows:
31 December 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD

Balance as of 1 January 2018 567,960,107 59,376,913 80,623,813 707,960,833
New facilities for the year 235,450,985 35,998,102 5,317,213 276,766,300
Re-paid/derecognized facilities (271,662,445) (20,274,448) {16,914,009) (308,850,902)
Transfer lo siage 1 251,929 (227,800) (24,129) -
Transfer to stage 2 (15,863,268) 16,708,002 (844,734) -
Transfer to stage 3 {1,619,552) (953,564) 2,573,116 -
Written-off facilities and
transferred to off statement of
financial position items (391,166) (29,230,121) (29,621,287)
Total balance at the end of year 514,517 756 90,236,039 41,501,149 646,254 944

The movement on the provision for expected credit losses for corporate facilities for the year is as

follows:
31 December 2018
Slage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Tolal
JD JD Jo JD

Balance as of 1 January 2018 2,140,058 6,151,568 54,608,749 62,900,375
ECL for new facilities during the year 14,884 - 1,569,087 1,583,971
Recoveries from ECL related to seltled facililies (1,370,754} - (8,480,682) (9,851,436)
Transfer to stage 1 8,580 {8,580) - -
Transfer to stage 2 {177,318) 469,209 (291,891) -
Transfer to stage 3 (960) {870,267) 871,227 -
Effect on pravision-resuliing from reciassification
among lhree stages for the year (6,153) {244,552) {438,004) (688,709)
ECL on old facilities during the year 767,906 (960,716) 2,891,595 2,698,785
Wrilten-offl facilities and lransferred to off
statement of financial position items (324,796} (18,554,459) (18,879,255)
Adjusiments due to exchange rate changes - - (341,797} (341,797)
Total balance at the end of year 1,376,243 4,211,866 31,833,825 37,421,934
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The classification of gross balances relating to SMEs Facilities according to the Group’s internal

credit rating is as follows:

2018 2017
Slage 1 Slage 2
ltem Individual Individual Stage 3 Total Tolal
JD JD JD JD JD
Low risk / performing 35,930,917 - - 35,939,917 29,658,984
Acceplable risk / performing 90,956,491 28,610,165 - 119,566,656 139,401,143
Non-Performing:
Substandard - 2,035,530 2,035,530 2,250,491
Doubtful - - 4,634,543 4,634,543 4,548,211
Loss - - 21,178,567 21,178,567 16,505,673
Total 126,896,408 28,610,165 27,848,640 183,355,213 192,362,502
The movement on SMEs facilities at year end is as follows:
31 December 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Siage 3 Total

JD JD JD Jo
Balance as of 1 January 2018 147,233,850 21,826,277 23,302,375 192,362,502
New facililies for the year 71,739,802 10,610,526 3,613,125 85,963,553
Re-paid/derecognized facililies (76,657,607) (10,718,056} (3,844,470) (91,220,133)
Transfer to stage 1 2,433,487 (2.319,080) (114,407) -
Transfer to stage 2 (13.889,739) 14,016,696 {116,957) -
Transfer to stage 3 (3,944,956) (4,758,453) 8,703,409 -
Wirilten-off facilities and transferred lo off
statement of financial position items {8,529) (47,745) (3,694,435) (3,750,709)
Tolal balance at the end of year 126,896,408 28,610,165 27,848,640 183,355,213

The movement on the provision for expected credit losses for SMEs facilities for the year is as

follows:

Batance as of 1 January 2018
ECL for new facililies during Lhe year
Recoveries from ECL relaled lo setiled facililies

Transfer to stage 1

Transfer to stage 2

Transfer to stage 3

Effect on provision-resulling from reclassification among three
stages for the year

ECL for ofd facilities during the year

Wrilten-off facililies and transferred 1o off statement of financial
position items

Adjustments due to exchange rate changes

Total balance al the end of year

31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD
368,088 1,997,061 11,283,765 13,648,914
111,155 30,761 2,758,065 2,899,981
- - {1.923,858) {1.923,858)
11,772 (11,772 - -
(100,950) 101,944 (994) -
{44,858) (1,138,812} 1,183,670 -
(10,480) 67,794 1.041,738 1,099,052
(33,338) (296,716) 587,715 257,661
(8.529) (584) (2,141,142) (2,150,255)
- - 50,776 50,776
292,860 749,676 12,839,735 13,882,271
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The classification of gross balances relating to consumer facilities according to the Group’s

internal credit rating is as follows:

2018 2017
Stage 1 Slage 2
Item Individual Individual Slage 3 Tolal Total
Jo JD JD Jo JD
Low risk / perfarming 35,920,966 - - 35,920,966 38,708,003
Acceptable risk / performing 281,641,799 9,635,412 - 291,577,211 301,918,874
Non-Performing:
Substandard - - 756,028 756,028 1,203,445
Doubiful - - 3,276,443 3,276,443 3,783,609
Loss - - 15,430,638 15,430,638 25,122,116
Total 317,562,765 9,935,412 19,463,108 346,961,286 370,824,137
The movement on Consumer facilities at year end is as follows:
31 December 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD
Balance as of 1 January 2018 330, 668,938 10,045,939 30,109,260 370,824,137
MNew facilities for the year 97,318,215 1,454,530 1,029,146 99,801,891
Re-paid/derecognized facllities {102,872,490) (2,693,495) (4,654,270) (110,220,255)
Transfer to stage 1 1,947,360 (1,684,848) (262,512) -
Transfer to stage 2 (5,850,586) 5,933,667 (82,971) -
Transfer to slage 3 (3,635,467) (3,114,626) 6,750,093 -
Written-off facilittes and
transferred to off statement of
financial position items (13,205) {5,645} (13,425,637) {13,444,487)
Total balance ai the end of year 317,562,765 9,935,412 19,463,109 346,961,286

The movement on the provision for expected credit losses for Consumer facilities for the year is

as follows:
31 December 2018
Stage 1 Siage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD

Balance as of 1 January 2018 2,346,463 2,003,714 20,856,678 25,206,855
ECL for new facilities during the year 2211 7,639 4,631,631 4,661,281
Recoveries from ECL related to settled facilities - - (2,532,744} {2,532,744)
Transfer to stage 1 565,956 {337,778} (228,178) -
Transfer to stage 2 {165,188} 228,735 (63,547) -
Transfer to stage 3 {119,169) {869,183) 988,352 -
Effect on provision-resulting from
rectassification among three stages for the
year (534,101) 1,097,644 3,062,050 3,625,593
ECL for old facllities during the year (365,739) 316,211 (3,021,804) (3,071,332)
Wrilten-off facililies and transferred to off
statement of financial position items (11,088) {3.456) (9,321,312) (9,335,856)
Adjustments due to exchange rate changes - - 418,181 418,181
Toial balance at the end of year 1,739,245 2,443,426 14,789,307 18,971,978
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The classification of gross balances relating to housing loans according to the Group's internal

credit rating is as follows:

2018 2017
Stage 1 Stage 2
ltem Individual Individual Stage 3 Total Tolal
JD JD JD JD JD
Low risk / performing 28,771,020 - - 28,771,020 -
Acceplable risk / performing 262,345,093 16,873,865 - 279,218,958 301,138,394
Non-Performing:
Substandard - - 1,972,870 1,972,870 761,822
Doubtful - - 4,622,677 4,622,677 1,149,401
Loss - - 8,230,841 8,230,841 5,628,197
Total 291,116,113 16,873,865 14,826,388 322,816,366 308,677,814
The movement on Housing loans at year end is as follows:
31 December 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD
Balance as of 1 January 2018 291,580,566 9,657,828 7,539,420 308,677,814
New facilities for the year 69,082,334 4,721,071 1,468,859 75,272,264
Re-paid/derecognized facililies (56,899,650) (1,776,290} (2,437,508) (61,113,448)
Transfer to stage 1 4,105,813 (3,650,468) (455,345) -
Transfer to stage 2 {12,085,071) 12,414,127 {329,056) -
Transfer 1o stage 3 (4,667,159) (4,391,661) 9,058,820 -
written-off facilities and transferred off
statement of financial position items {720) (742) (18,802) {20,264)
Total balance at the end of year 291,116,113 16,873,865 14,826,388 322,816,366

The movement on the provision for expected credit losses for housing loans for the year is as

follows:

Balance as of 1 January 2018

ECL for new facilities during the year
Recoveries from ECL related to seltled facilities
Transfer to stage 1

Transfer to stage 2

Transfer to stage 3

Effect on provision-resuiting from reclassification
among three stages for the year

ECL for old facilities during the year
Written-off  facilities and  iransferred
statement of financial position items
Adjustments due o exchange rate changes

Tolal balance at the end of year

off

31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Slage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD
290,641 542,650 2,384,902 3,218,093
3,463 19,102 1,251,166 1,273,731
. - (958,960) {958,960)
165,176 {(49,127) (116,049) -
(16,227) 27,599 {11,372) .
{15,571} (343,180) 358,751 -
184,935
(81,955) 71,764 174,744
3,404 7,943 1,493,390 1,504,737
{174,416)
(590) {293) (175,299)
- - (248,930) (248,930
348,341 276,358 4,163,417 4,788,116
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The classification of gross balances refating to government and public sector facilities according

to the Group's internal credit rating is as follows:

2018 2017
Stage 1 Stage 2
Item Individual Individual Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
Acceptable risk / performing 21,129,063 - - 21,129,063 22,695,285
Total 21,129,063 - - 21,129,063 22,695,285

The movement on the provision for expected credit losses for government and public sector loans

at year end is as follows:

31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD
Balance as of 1 January 2018 - 22,695,285 - 22,695,285
Repaid /derecognized facilities - (1,566,222) - (1,566,222)
Effect from reclassification among three
stages for the year/year 21,129,063 {21,129,063) - -
Total balance at the end of year 21,129,063 - - 21,129,063

The movement on the provision for expected credit losses for government and public sector

facilities for the year is as follows:

31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual | Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD
Balance as of 1 January 2018 - 142,815 - 142,816
Recoveries from ECL related to setlled facilities - (57,821) - (67.821)
Net transferred in stage 1 84,994 {84,994) B }
Total balance at the end of year 84,994 - - 84,994
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The classification of gross balances relating to total direct facilities according to the Group’s

internal credit rating is as follows:

2018 2017
Stage 1 Stage 2
lem Individual Individual Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD Jo JD JD

Low risk / performing 195,766,590 - - 195,786,590 126,613,202
Acceptable risk / performing  1,075,435,515 145,655,481 - 1,221,090,996 1,334,332 502
Non-Performing:
Substandard - - 10,323,061 10,323,081 4,215,758
Doubiful - - 12,621,844 12,621,844 14,647 845
Loss . . 80,694,381 80,694,381 . _ 122,711,264
Total 1,271,222,105 145,655,481 103,639,286 1,520,516,872 1.602,520,571

The movement on facilities at collective basis at year-end is as follows:

31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD

Balance as of 1 January 2018 1,337,443,461 123,502,242 141,574,868 1,602,520,571
New facilities for the year 473,591,436 52,784,229 11,428,343 537,804,008
Re-paid/derecognized facilities (508,092,192) (37.028,511) (27,850,257) {572,970,960)
Transfer to stage 1 8,738,589 (7.882,196) (856,393) -
Transfer to stage 2 (47,698,664) 49,072,382 (1,373,718) -
Transfer to stage 3 {13,867,134) {13,218,304) 27,085,438 -
Effect on provision-resulting from
reclassification among three stages
for the year 21,129,063 (21,129,063) - -
Wrillen-off facilities and transferred
to off statement of financial position
items (22,454) {445,298) (46,368,995) (46,836,747)
Total balance at the end of year 1,271,222,105 145,655,481 103,639,286 1,520,516,872

The movement on the provision for expected credit losses for facilifies at collective basis for the

year is as follows:

31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2
Individual Individual Stage 3 Total

JD JD D JD
Balance as of 1 January 2018 5,145,250 10,837,708 89,134,004 105,117,052
ECL for new facilities during the year 151,613 57.402 10,209,949 10,418,964
Recoveries from ECL relaled to settled facilities (1,370,754) {57,821) (13,896,244) (15,324,819)
Transfer to stage 1 836,478 {492,251) (344,227) -
Transfer o stage 2 {459,683) 827,487 (367,804) -
Transfer to stage 3 (180,558} (3.221,442) 3,402,000 -
Effect on provision-resulling from reclassification
among three stages for the year (632,689) 992,650 3,850,719 4,210,680
ECL for old facilities during lhe year 372,233 (933,278} 1,950,896 1,389,851
Wrilten-off facilities and lransferred to off statement of
financial position items (20,207} {329,129) (30,191,329} (30,540,665)
Adjustments due to exchange rate changes - - (121,770) (121,770)
Tolal bafance at the end of year 3,841,683 7,681,326 63,626,284 75,149,292
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Suspended Interests
The movement on suspended interests is as follows:

Companies
Small and
Real estata medium
Individuals loans Corporales Companles Tolal
JD JD Jo JD Jo

For the year ended In 31 December 2018
Balance al the beginning of the year 5,599,893 1,040,621 17,107,587 4,372,227 28,120,328
Add: Interests in suspense for the year 2572108 1,023,858 5,785,057 2,202,563 11,583,586
Less: Interests transferred 1o revenues (107,061} (101,326} (528,938) (95.6576) {832,901)
Less Transferred lo off-Consolidaled stalement
of financial position items {4.326,623) {116,447) (7.572,144) {1.414.410} (13,429,624)
Inlerests In suspense writlen-olf (1,168,823) (17.714) {3,354,523) {112,339) (4,653,399)
Forelgn currenclas evalualion difference . - 69,400 69,400
Balance at the end of the year 2,569,494 1,828,992 11,437,039 5,021,865 20,857,390
For the year ended In 31 December 2017
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,894,777 974,958 16,365,813 4,500,080 21,735,628
Add: Interests In suspense flor the year 1,667,433 239,555 7,456,597 1,287,524 10,651,106
Less: Inleresls transferred to revenues (338,375) (18,923) (1.267.001) (183,413) (1,807,712}
Less Transferred to off-Consolidated slalement

of financial position items {1,350,043) (110,842) {2,418,013) (1.049,992) {4,928,890)
Inleresls In suspanse wrillen-off (215,300) (44,127) (3,037,285) (188,739) (3.485,451)
Forelgn currencles evaluatlon difference {58,599) - 7,476 6,770 {44,353)
Balance at the end of the year 5,599,893 1,040,621 17,107,587 4,372,227 28,120,328
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(9) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The details of this item are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

JD JD
Quoted shares* 10,649,493 11,474,277
Unguoted shares 14,312,545 12,601,277
Mutual funds** 2,382,240 5,326,008
Total 27,344,278 29,401,562

* On 1 January 2018, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of JD 954,381 were
reclassified to financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

- Cash dividends distributions for the above mentioned financial assets amounted to JD 908,047
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (JD 953,223 for the year ended 31 December 2017).

{10) _ FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST

The details of this item are as follows:

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD

Treasury bonds and bills 552,079,399 484,763,654
Corporate bonds 102,645,000 57,853,886

654,724,399 542,617,540
Provision for expected credit losses (388,812) -
Total 654,335,587 542 617,540
Fixed rate 654,335,587 542,617,640
Total 654,335,687 542,617,540
Unquoted bonds and bills 654,335,587 542,617,540

The classification of gross balance for financial assets at amortized cost according to the Group's
internal risk rating is as follows:

2018 2017
ltem Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
Low risk / performing 552,079,399 - - 552,079,399 484,763,654
Acceptable risk / 57,853,886
performing 102,645,000 102,645,000
Total 654,724,399 654,724,399 542,617,540
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The movement of the financial assets at amortized cost at year end is as follows:

31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD
Fair value at 1 January 2018 542 617,540 - - 542,617,540
New investment for the year 327,851,079 - - 327,851,079
Matured investment (215,377,892) - - {215,377,892)
Change in fair value {366,328) - - (366,328)
Total balance at the end of year 654,724,399 - - 654,724,399

The movement on the provision for expected credit losses of financial assets at amortized cost

for the year is as follows:
31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
JOD JD JD JD
Al 1 January 2018 (restated) 232,965 - - 232,965
ECL for new balances during the year 161,255 - - 161,255
Recoveries from ECL related to
matured investment {5,408) - - (5408)
Total balance at the end of year 368,812 - - 388,812
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{13} INTANGIBLE ASSETS- NET

The details of this item are as follows:

Balance- beginning of the year
Additions
Amortization for the year

Balance — end of the year

Annual amortization rate %

{14) Other Assets

The details of this item are as follows:

Real estate foreclosed by the Bank against debts *- Net
Accrued interest and commissions

Checks and fransfers under collection

Foreclosed assets sold - net

Prepaid expenses

Various debtors

Prepaid rent

Refundable deposits - Net

Temporary advances

Other debit balances

* The movement on assets foreclosed by the Bank against debts is as follows:

Balance - beginning of the year

Additions

Disposals

Impairment loss

Provision for breached foreclosed assets **
Recovered impairment loss

Balance - End of the Year

60

Computer, software and

applications
Total
2018 2017
JD JD

19,787,541 21,141,035

3,294,372 5,643,263
(6,603,276) {6,996,757)
16,478,637 19,787,541

14-30 14-30

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
Jo JD
84,107,268 76,838,461
14,241,044 9,959,540
5,850,019 5,837,267
12,411,423 8,626,565
2,946,126 3,126,728
3,217,546 4,538,864
1,109,834 1,456,198
334,008 294,532
872,523 2,229,564
138,982 631,824
125,228,773 113,539,543
2018 2017
JD JD
76,838,461 65,696,413
18,129,960 23,489,319
(10,384,335) (7,060,687)
(1,018,074) (519,143)
_ (5,532,869)
541,256 765,428
84,107,268 76,838,461




JORDAN AHLI BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The Central Bank of Jordan regulations require a disposal of these assets during a maximum

period of two years from the date of foreclose.

** Movement on the impairment on breached assets sized by the bank:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Provided for the year

Provision for sold property for the year
Balance at the end of the year

31 December

31 December

(16) Banks and Financial Institutions Deposits

The details of this item are as follows:

Current accounts and demand deposits
Time deposits
Total

Current accounts and demand deposits
Time deposits
Total

2018 2017
JD JD
10,037,839 4,989,038
- 5,532,869
(162,865) (484,068)
9,874,974 10,037,839
December 31, 2018
Inside Outside
Jordan Jordan Total

JD JD JD
1,008,676 2,614,280 3,522,956
14,062,455 80,574,566 94,637,021
15,071,131 83,088,846 98,159,977

December 31, 2017
Inside Qutside
Jordan Jordan Total

JD JD JD
1,344,357 3,345,098 4,689,455
124,731 73,490,512 73,615,243
1,469,088 76,835,610 78,304,698

- There are banks and financial institutions deposits maturing within a period exceeding three

months amounted to JD 11,498,858 as of 31 December 2018 and there are no banks and financial

institutions deposits maturing within a period exceeding three months as of 31December 2017.
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(16) CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS

The details of this item are as follows:
Govemnmenlal

and public
Individual Corporate SMEs seclors Total
JD JD JO JD JD

31 December 2018

Current and demand deposils 172,064,077 111,622,519 138,014,912 27,505,990 449,207,498
Saving accounts 270,936,226 - - - 270,936,226
Time and nolice deposils 744,337,898 245,934,330 142,624,401 58,729,768 1,191,626,397
Total 1,187,338,201 357,556,849 280,639,313 86,235,758 1,911,770,121
31 December 2017

Current and demand deposits 226,152,350 98,867,459 110,764,236 12,891,130 448,675,175
Saving accounls 302,366,406 - - - 302,366,406
Time and notice deposils 792,831,663 227,764,238 107,922,691 39,100,199 1,167,618,791
Total 1,321,350,419 326,631,697 218,686,927 51,991,329 1,918,660,372

- Public sectors and the government of Jordan deposits inside the Kingdom amounted to JD
85,780,909 representing 4.49% of total customers’ deposits as at 31 December 2018 compared to
JD 51,771,611 representing 2.70% of total customers’ deposits as at 31 December 2017.

- Non-interest-bearing deposits amounted to JD 550,004,317 representing 28.77% of total
customers’ deposits as at 31 December 2018 compared to JD 466,949,336 representing 24.34%
of total customers’ deposits as at 31 December 2017.

- Restricted deposits amounted to JD 3,328,706 representing 0.17% of total customers’ deposits of
as at 31 December 2018 compared to JD 3,952,230 representing 0.21% of total customers’ deposits

as at 31 December 2017.

- Dormant deposits amounted to JD 35,740,193 representing 1.87% of total customers’ deposits as
at 31 December 2018 compared to JD 56,899,761 representing 2.97% of total customers’ deposits

as at 31 December 2017.

- Dormant fund deposits amount JD zero as at 31 December 2018 compared to JD 667,419
representing 0.03% of total customers’ deposits as at 31 December 2017.
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(17) Margin accounts

The details of this item are as follows:

Cash margins on direct credit facilities

Cash margins on indirect credit facilities

Marginal deposits
Other margins

(18)___ LOANS AND BORROWINGS

The details of this item are as follows:

3 December 2018 -

Central Bank of Jordan

Central Bank of Jordan

Cenlral Bank of Jordan

Cenlral Bank of Jordan

Cenlral Bank of Jordan

Ewropean Bank for Reconstructon
and Development

Jordan Mortgage Reference Company

Local Bank {ioan to a Subsidiary)

Local Bank {loan to a Subsidiary)

Local Bank {lean lo a Subsidiary)

Jordan Mortgage Relerence Company

{loan lo a Subsidiary)

Local Bank (foan o a Subsidiary)
Lecal Bank (foan o a Subsidiary)

Total

December 31

2018 2017
JD JD
215,107,461 206,328,124
29,520,800 30,714,006
1,197,082 3,052,392
11,590,812 11,864,994
257,416,155 251,959,516
Number of instalments
Intacast Relending
Amounl Total Remaining Instalment maturity frequency Collaterals rala interesl rate
i) i 3] %
3,600,000 30 29 Semi — annual installmenls N4 670
441,393 30 a0 Semi— annual installments 3 61143
2,133,000 14 13 Semi - annual installments 245 61143
2,305,000 20 20 Semi — annual instzliments AH50 6666
17,781,042 Renewed monthly 11870 4192
Semi — annual inslaliments
7,090,000 7 7 4ris 129
50,000,000 1 1 - - 6413 BI5-415
1,083,333 24 13 Eighth of every month . 625 1017
5,000,000 1 1 29 - 5 w017
9,463,160 24 24 30122020 - 575 1017
3 April 2099,2 May 2019
11 May 2019
23 Augusl 2019 ,18 December 2019
1 July
2021,28 Decembeor
35,030,000 8 8 2021 6/2-4/6 10197
36 monthly installmenls effective from
the Wilhdrawal dale
36 monthly inslallmenls effective frem
5,141,526 - - the Withdrawal date - 6175 1815
3,433,336 - - &/5 18-15
142 471,809
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Number of instaiments.

Retending
Amount Tolal Remaining Instalment maturity frequency Collaterals Interes! rale interesl rata
Jo JD JD Y
31 Decemnber 2017 -
Cenfral Bank of Jordan 4,000.000 30 30 Semi - annual instaliments - k773 6279
Central Bank of Jordan 441,393 30 30 Semi — annual inslallments - 3 67143
Gentral Bank of Jordan 2,511,000 14 13 Semi — annual installments - 215 67143
Cenlral Bank of Jordan 2,305,000 20 20 Semi — annual installiments - Ry 6556
Cenlral Bank of Jordan 16,550,668 20 20 Semi - annual instaliments - imar 47192
Local Bank 2,850,095 1 1 - . 175 -
European Bank for Reconstruction and
Development 7,090,000 7 7 Semi — annual instaliments - afie 9-12
Jordan Mortgage Relerence Company 10,000,000 1 1 - - 413 B8I5-415
Local Bank {loan to a Subsidiary) 2,000,000 24 - Firslof March 2018 - 5 B8/5-8
Loeal Bank {foan lo a Subsidiary) 9,444,031 24 - 31 August 2018 - 515 G5-8
38 manthly instalment effective
Local Bank {loan 1o & Subsidiary) 5,000,000 36 - from wilhdrawal date - 515 95-8
Local Bank (loan lo a Subsidiary) 5,000,000 36 - 31 march 2019 - 5/55 95-8
First of July 2018, 28
December 2018, 3 April 2019, 2
May 2019, 11 May 2019, 23
Jordan Morigage Reference Company August 2019, 18 Decamber
{loan lo a Subsidiary) 30,000,000 5 5 2019 - 4754155 958
36 monlhly instt!ments effective
Local Bank {loan lo a Subsidiary) 465,283 6 - from the Wilhdrawal dale - 5T 16-18
35 monthly instiments ef{eclive
Local Bank {loan to a Subsidiary) 1,648,964 k] - trom the Wilhdrarwal date - 5154 15-18
38 monthly instUments effective
L ocal Bank (foan lo a Subsidiary) 7,261,498 6 - from Lhe Withdrawal date - 515 15-18
24 monthly insltiments effective
Local Bank {loan to a Subsidiary) 188,133 29 - from the Withdrawal dale - 5/54 15-18
Total 108,776,265

December 2017: JD 106,776,265).
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(19) Subordinated bonds

The details of this item are as follows:

31 December 2018
Subordinated bonds non
transferrable to shares

31 December 2017
Subordinated bonds non
transferrable to shares

No. of issued bonds

Nominal Interest
amount Maturity date Total Remaining Guarantees rate
JD
12 October
25,000,000 2023 250 - 75
No. of issued bonds
Nominal Interest
amount Maturity date Total Remaining Guarantees rafe
JD
12 October
25,000,000 2023 250 - 6/75

During the year 2017, the bank issued subordinated bonds non transferrable to shares for a period
of six years through private subscription and the nominal value of the bond is JD 100,000 at variable
interest rate that equals the discounted interest rate to the Central Bank of Jordan in addition to 2%
margin. Moreover, the interest is paid semi- annually and the bonds mature on 12 October 2023.

{20) Sundry Provisions

The details of this item are as follows:

2018

Provision for end - of - service indemnity
Provision for legal claims against the Bank

Other provisions

2017

Provision for end - of - service indemnity
Provision for legal claims against the Bank

Other provisions

Balance
beginning Balance end of
of the Year Additicns Disposals the Year
JD JD JD JO
3,092,330 521,118 {384,177) 3,229,271
458,660 10,000 {145,075) 323,585
334,135 254,184 {531,667} 56,652
3,885,125 785,302 (1,060,919) 3,609,508
Batance
beginning Balance end of
of the Year Additions Disposals the Year
JD JD JD JD
3,027,634 684,644 (619,948) 3,092,330
216,160 290,200 (47,700) 458,660
149,005 185,040 - 334,135
3,392 889 1,159,884 {667,648) 3,885,125
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(21} INCOME TAX

The movement on the income tax provision was as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Income tax paid

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
4,418,203 926,721
(7,684,980) (4,708,336)

Income tax for the year 10,489,328 8,199,818
Balance at the end of the year 7,222,551 4,418,203

Income tax in the consolidated income statement represents the following:

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
JD JD
Accrued income tax on the year's profit 10,489,328 8,199,818
Deferred tax assets for the year (1,042,404) (2,406,469)
Amortization of deferred tax assets for the year 2,486,551 966,693
11,933,475 6,760,042

- According to the Income Tax Law which has come effective from 1 January 2015, a tax rate of
35% is used to calculate the income tax expense for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2017. The income tax rates on foreign branches and subsidiaries range between 12.5%
26.72%. Starting from January 2019 the tax rate has been amended and the tax rate will become
35% income tax plus 3% national contribution tax, i.e. a total of 38%, in accordance with income
tax law No (34) of 2014 amended by tax law No.(38) of 2018.

- The Bank has reached a final settlement with the Income and Sales Tax Department for all
previous years up to 2013 for the Jordan Branch.

- During February 2018 a notice was received from the income and sales tax department to
impose an income tax on the bank for the year 2014 for an amount of JD 1,642,474. In the
opinion of the bank and the tax consultant, there is no need to take additional provision and.
The Bank filed a lawsuit at the court rejecting the claim.

- 2015 and 2016 were audited, and the income sale tax department imposed additional tax
amounted 1,479,310 and 805,719, the bank filed lawsuit at court rejecting the claim . In the
opinion of the bank and tax consultant no need for additional provision.

- Self assessment was submitted for the 2017. however, the income tax department did not
review the records until the date of these consolidated financial statements.

- Income tax provision for the year 2018 was calculated for the Bank. In the opinion of the
management and the tax consultant, the tax provision booked for the year is sufficient.
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A final tax setilement has been reached with the income tax and value-Added tax for the bank
in Palestine up fo the year 2017.

A final tax settlement has been reached for Cyprus branch up to the year 2017.

Ahli Financing Brokerage Company (a subsidiary} — has reached a final settlement with the
Income and Sales Tax Department up to 2014. In addition, the seif-tax assessment was
submitted for the years 2015, 2016 and 2017. Noting that an objection was issued for the year
2015 along with a claim of 43,000 JOD in which the company is held liable of. In the opinion of
the company's tax consultant, there is no need to take provision against the fiscal year 2015
because the decision is against the law. In the opinion of the management and tax consulitant,
no tax provision are required for that year.

Ahli Financing Leasing Company (a subsidiary) — has reached a final settiement with the Income
and Sales Tax Department up for 2015, the income tax department reviewed the company
record for the 2015 but did not issue it's report yet. In addition, the self-tax assessment was
submitted for the year 2016 and 2017. However, the income tax department did not review the
records until the date of these consolidated financial statements.

Ahli Micro Finance Company (a subsidiary) — has reached a final settlement with the Income and

Sales Tax Department up for 2017.

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
JD JD
Income tax rate
Jordan Branches 35% 35%
Palestine Branches 26.72% 26.72%
Cyprus Branch 12.5% 12.5%

The movement on the deferred tax assets/liabilities account is as follows:

2018 2017
Assets Liabilities Assels Liabilities
JO JD JD JD

Balance — beginning of the year 7,659,003 491,607 6,219,227 1,002,584
Effect of applying IFRS 9 3,415,351 - - -
Additions 1,042,404 - 2,406,469 160,305
Amortized (2,486,551)  (491,607) (966,693) (671,282)

9,630,207 - 7,659,003 491,607

Balance — end of the year
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Accounts included
A. Deferred tax assets

Prior years' provision for non-
performing loans

Interest in suspense

Provision for impairment in real estale
Provision for lawsuits

Provision for end-of-service indemnity
Provision for impairment in financial
assets measured at amortized cost
Other provisions

Total

B. Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value reserve for financial assets
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Total

Accounts included
A. Deferred tax assets

Prior years’ provision for non-
performing loans

Interest in suspense

Provision for impairment in real estate
Provision for lawsuits

Provision for end-of-sefvice indemnity
Provision for impairment in financial
assets measured at amortized cost
Other provisicns

Total

B. Deferred tax liabilities

Fair value reserve for financial assets
at fair value through other
comprehensive income*

Total

2018
Beginning Amounts Year -End Deferred
Balance Additions released balance Tax
JD JD JD JD JD
2,062,287 - (20,506) 2,041,781 545,648
2,212,309 - (76,733) 2,135,576 570,714
15,398,592 - (4,523,618) 10,874,974 4,132,490
308,860 10,000 (145,075) 173,785 59,949
3,008,496 497,446  (383,203) 3,122,739 834,641
9,758,142 - {1,000,000) 8,758,142 3,328,094
150,773 406,642  (150,773) 406,642 108,671
32,899,459 914,088 (6,299,908) 27,513,639 9,630,207
1,404,591 - {4,630,469) (3,225,878) -
1,404,591 - {4,630,469) (3,225,878) -
2017
Beginning Amounts Year -End Deferred
Balance Additions released balance Tax
JD JD JD JD JD
2,127,492 - {65,205} 2.062,287 593,798
2,180,196 124,539 {92,426) 2,212,309 636,994
10,798,671 6,052,012 (1,452,091) 15,398,592 5,389,507
216,160 140,400 {47,700) 308,860 104,721
2,917,118 659,012 (567,634) 3,008,496 890,571
625,338 - (625,338) - -
138,648 12,125 - 150,773 43,412
19,003,623 6,988,088 (2,850,394) 23,141,317 7,659,003
2,864,527 458,014 {1,917,950) 1,404,591 491,607
2,864,627 458,014 {1,917,950) 1,404,591 491,607
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Summary of the reconciliation of accounting income to taxable income:

Accounting profit
Non-taxable profit
Non-deductible expenses

Taxable profit

Effective income tax rate

22 OTHER LIABILITIES

The details of this item are as follows:

Accepted checks and transfer

Accounts payable to financial brokerage customers
Accrued interests

Temporary deposits

Various creditors

Accrued expenses

Interest and commissions received in advance

Check and transfers — delayed in payment

Provision for technical and vocational education and
training support fund fees

Board of directors remuneration

Provision for expected credit losses on indirect credit
facilities and unutilized facilities ceilings*

Others

2018 2017
JD JD
33,210,755 20,078,927
(9.221,481)  (10,098,027)
3,755,551 10,664,167
27,744,825 20,645,067
35.93% 33.67%

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
4,437,743 4,893,586
333,736 657,689
9,776,565 7,405,258
9,037,866 11,235,379
3,194,964 1,727,376
4,063,617 4,167,105
953,993 407,036
2,552,015 1,637,362
- 157,255
83,018 83,018
1,833,318 -
258,624 898,466
36,525,459 33,269,530

The classification of gross balance for indirect facilities according to the Group's international

credit rating is as follows:

2018 2017
Stage i Stage 2
ltem Individual Individual Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD

Acceptable Risk /
performing 444,874,846 30,686,203 - 475,661,049 565,878,327
Non- performing - - 6,419,686 6,419,686 -
Total 444,874,846 30,686,203 6,419,686 481,980,735 565,878,327

69




JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

* The movement on indirect facilities is as follows.

31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2
(individual) (individual) Stage 3 Total

JD JD JD JD
Balance at 1 January 500,050,083 63,175,594 2,652,670 565,878,327
New facilities during the year 167,302,608 11,713,898 3,380,844 182,397,348
Re-paid/derecognized facilities  (217,727,802) {48,202,109) (364,929) (266,294,940)
Transfer to stage 1 2,245,169 (1.952,991) (292,178) -
Transfer to stage 2 (6,384,490) 6,600,231 (215,741) -
Transfer to stage 3 (610,600) (648,420) 1,259,020 -
Total balance at the end of year 444,874,846 30,686,203 6,419,686 481,980,735

The movement on the provision for expected credit losses for indirect credit facilities and unutilized
facilities ceilings is as follows:

31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2
(individual) {individual) Stage 3 Total
JD JD JD JD
Balance at 1 January - - - -
Adjustments resulted frem IFRS 9
implementation 1,486,908 211,407 - 1,698,315
Balance as of 1 January 2018 {resiated) 1,486,908 211,407 - 1,698,315
ECL for new facilities during the year - 220,557 - 220,557
Recoveries from ECL related to settled
facilities {85,554) - - (85,554)
Transfer to stage 1 217,045 (4,747) (212,298) -
Transfer to stage 2 (56,374) 197,031 (140,657) -
Transfer to stage 3 {717) (17.874) 18,591 -
Effect on provision-resulting from
reclassification among three stages during
the year {159,954) (174,410) 801,862 467,498
ECL for old faciliiies during the year - - (467,498) (467,498)
Batance at the end of the year 1,401,354 431,964 - 1,833,318

(23) Capital and Share Premium

The bank's authorized and paid-up capital amounted to JD 192,937,500 divided into 192,937,500
shares of one Jordanian Dinar each as of 31 December 2018 (JD 183,750,000 as of December

2017).

The General Assembly resolved, in its ordinary meeting heid on 30 April 2018, to distribute 5% of
paid-up capital as cash dividends and 5% free shares from the voluntary reserve to the shareholders

for the year 2017.

The General Assembly resolved, in its ordinary meeting held on 30 April 2017, to distribute 5% of
paid-up capital as cash dividends and 5% free shares from the voluntary reserve to the shareholders

for the year 2016.
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{24} Reserves

The details of reserves as of 31 December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Statutory Reserve
The accumulated amounts in this account represent the amounts transferred from the annual net

income before tax at 10% according to the Bank's Law and the Companies law This reserve cannot
be distributed to shareholders.

Voluntary Reserve
This reserve represents amounts transferred from the pre-tax profits at a rate not exceeding 20%

during previous years. The voluntary reserve shall be utilized for the purposes determined by the
Board of Directors. The General Assembly shall have the right to distribute it in whole or in part as

dividends to shareholders.

General banking risks reserve

The Central Bank of Jordan issued a new regulations No. 13/2018 dated 6 June 2018, in which it
requested the transfer of the general banking risk reserve balance (calculated in accordance with
the Central Bank of Jordan’s regulations) to the retained earnings to offset the effect of IFRS 9 on
the opening batance of the retained earnings account as of 1 January 2018. The regulations also
instructs that the balance of the general banking risk reserve should be restricted and may not be
distributed as dividends to the shareholders or used for any other purposes without prior approval
from the Central Bank of Jordan.

Periodic fluctuations reserve

This reserve represents the periodic fluctuations reserve, calculated according to the Palestinian
Monetary Authority’s Instructions No. (1) for the year 2011, concerning all the banks operating in
Palestine on January 27, 2010. Moreover, the periodic fluctuations reserve is calculated at 15% of
the net profit after tax. Reference to Monetary Authority's Instructions No. (1) for year 2018 the
percentage was amended to become0.57% of high risk asset . The reserve cannot be used for any
purpose unless a prior written approval is obtained from the Palestinian Monetary Authority.

The restricted reserve are as follows:

31 December
Reserve 2018 2017 Restriction nature
JD JD

According to the Central Bank of Jordan
General banking risks reserve - 15,353,859 Instructions
Statutory reserve 57,344,171 54,023,096 According to Banks and Companies Laws

According to the Palestinian Monetary
Periodic fluctuation reserve 3,678,658 2,612,648 Authority Instruclions
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25 FAIR VALUE RESERVE - NET

The movement on this item is as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
IFRS 9 implementation impact

Balance as at 1 January 2018 (Restated)
Sold shares

Deferred tax liabilities

Net Unrealized loss transferred to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income
Balance af the end of the year

(26} RETAINED EARNING AND DISTRIBUTED DIVIDENDS

RETAINED EARNINGS

The details of this item are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

General banking risk reserve *

Expected credit loss for assets (ECL) resulted from IFRS
9 implementation

The effect of IFRS (9) (effect of reclassification of financial
assets)

The effect of IFRS (9) on deferred tax assets

Balance as at 1 Janwary 2018 (Restated)

Profit for the year

Gain (loss) from sale of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income statement
Distributed Dividends

{Transferred) to reserves

Balance at the end of the year
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31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
912,985 1,861,943
(330,204) ;
582,781 1,861,943
(26,763) 99,070
491,607 510,978
(4,273,503) (1,559,006)
(3.225,878) 912,985

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
24,584,535 22,705,839
15,353,859 -
(16,597,162) -
330,204 -
3,415,351 -
27,086,787 22,705,839
21,277,280 13,318,885
26,763 (99,070)
(9,187,500) (8,750,000)
(4,386,985) (2,591,119)
34,816,345 24,584,535
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The Central Bank of Jordan issued a new regulations No. 13/2018 dated 6 June 2018, in which it
requested the transfer of the general banking risk reserve balance (calculated in accordance with
the Central Bank of Jordan's regulations) to the retained earnings to offset the effect of IFRS 9 on
the opening balance of the retained earnings account as of 1 January 2018. The regulations also
instructs that the balance of the general banking risk reserve should be restricted and may not be
distributed as dividends to the shareholders or used for any other purposes without prior approval
from the Central Bank of Jordan.

As at 31 December 2018, an amount of JD 9,630,207 from retained earnings is restricted against
deferred tax assets (JD 7,659,003 as at 31 December 2017) in addition an amount of JD 3,125,029
which represents the restricted surplus of general banking risk reserve transferred to retained
earnings, according to the Central Bank of Jordan regulations.

The board of directors recommended to distribute 6% of the paid in capital as cash dividends
equivalent of JD 11.6 Million and 4% as stocks dividends equivalent to JD 7.7 Million/ share for the
year 2018. the proposal is subject to central bank and general assembly approval distributed
dividends of the prior year amounted to 5% as cash dividends equivalent of JD 9.19 million and 5%
as stock dividends equivalent to JD 9.19 millions/ share.

{27) __INTEREST INCOME

The details of this item are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD

Direct Credit Facilities:
Individuals {Retail)
Overdraft 432,691 859,505
Leans and discounted notes 32,676,007 31,231,695
Credit cards 2,230,452 2,341,727
Real estate mortgages 27,417,018 24,738,520
Companies
Large corporates
Overdraft 12,279,371 9,987,489
Loans and discounted notes 32,708,945 30,130,710
Small and medium enterprises lending:
Large corporates
Overdraft 5,218,327 4,787,102
Loans and discounted notes 14,203,037 16,679,713
Government and Public Sector 1,187,558 1,177,982
Balances at Central Banks 1,116,682 799,291
Balances and deposits at banks and financial institutions 3,008,857 1,708,297
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 22,491,498 22,381,034

164,970,443 146,723,085
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{28) INTEREST EXPENSE

The details of this item are as follows:

Banks and financial institutions deposits
Customers’ deposits:
Current accounts and demand deposits
Saving accounts
Time and notice placements
Cash margins
Borrowed funds
Subordinated bonds
Deposit insurance fees

(29) Commissions income — net

Commissions income:
Direct credit facilities
Indirect credit facilities
Other commissions

| ess: Commission expense

(30} Foreign Exchange Income

From trading
From re-evaluation
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For the year ended 31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
2,549,541 1,699,748
359,073 203,270
1,245,387 1,252,255
47,835,902 42,877,304
6,545,902 5,996,433
6,273,288 4,457,485
1,791,781 374,486
4,172,906 4,524,945
70,773,780 61,385,926
2018 2017
JD JD
4,245,215 6,227,981
4,852,276 5,764,682
10,658,748 9,756,485
(690,794) (757,210)
19,065,445 20,991,938
2018 2017
JD JD
2,224,130 2,475,541
590,460 857,477
2,814,590 3,333,018




JORDAN AHLI BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(31)

GAIN FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Realized Unrealized
Gain (loss) (losses) Dividends Total
JD JD JD
31 December 2018
Equity instruments - - -
Total - - -
31 December 2017
Equity instruments 2,692 (32,911) 32,422 2,203
Total 2,692 {32,911) 32,422 2,203
(32) CREDIT LOSS EXPENSE ON FINANCIAL ASSETS
31 December
31 December 2018 2017
Stage 1 Stage 2
Notes Individual Individual Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
Balance and deposit at
Central Bank, banks ,
financial institution 4506 30,551 - 30,551 -
Financial assets at
amortized cost 10 165,847 - - 165,847 -
Direct credit facilities 8 (1,479,597) 58,953 2,115,320 694,676 11,886,286
Indirect facilities and
unutilized balances
ceilings 22 (245,508) 46,147 334,364 135,003 -
Total {1,538,707) 105,100 2,449,684 1,016,077 11,886,286
(33} OTHER INCOME
The details of this item are as follows:
2018 2017
JD JD
Recovered suspended interest 832,901 1,807,712
Brokerage commission income 101,430 96,934
Income from sale of properties and equipment 367,032 15,430
Recovery of debts previously written-off 1,604,665 1,806,642
income from check books 148,795 175,379
Rental income of Bank's real estate 301,050 284,411
Rental income of safe deposit boxes 152,120 161,594
Insurance company compensation - 1,000,000
Recovered impairment loss from foreclosed assets sold 541,256 765,428
Other income 1,124,592 1,663,716
5,173,841 7,777,246
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{34) EMPLOYEES EXPENSES

Salaries, bonuses and employees' benefits
Bank's contribution to social security
Bank's contribution to staff provident fund
Medical Expenses

End-of-service indemnity

Employees’ training

Travel expenses

Employees' life insurance

Employess' meals

Employees' uniforms

{35) Other expenses

Fees and subscriptions
Maintenance, repair and cleaning
Advertisement

Printing and stationary

Rent and key money

Studies, research and consulting expenses
Insurance fees

Water, electricity and heating

Legal fees

Donations

Transportation

Telecommunication

Other operating expenses

General assembly meeting expenses
Board of Directors’ expenses
Security

Professional fees

Entertainment and hospitality
Expenses of land and real estate evaluations
Lawsuits provision expenses

Board of Director's remunerations

2018 2017
JD JD
33,404,274 32,585,465
2,919,729 2,933,291
1,734,495 1,718,410
1,597,881 1,371,716
521,118 684,644
236,550 205,873
511,516 358,612
137,075 115,530
169,141 204,038
2,970 7,227
41,234,749 40,184,806
2018 2017
JD JD
5,085,182 5,938,204
4,109,740 4,724,821
1,381,433 2,473,508
670,333 810,991
2,793,783 2,931,727
526,716 562,687
1,650,040 1,688,191
1,138,230 1,728,733
1,430,363 1,436,267
954,790 1,160,147
385,937 731,478
853,905 1,363,874
614,400 315,161
80,778 70,792
1,043,148 743,756
502,487 482,396
279,769 346,120
53,275 74,715
26,507 40,139
10,000 290,200
65,000 65,000
23,655,816 27,978,907

76




JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

{36) EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTED TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE BANK

Profit for the year
Weighted average number of shares *

Basic and diluted earnings per share

2018 2017
JD JD
21,277,280 13,318,885
192,937,500 192,937,500
-110 -/069

*Weighted average number of shares to the diluted earning per share attributed to shareholders was
calculated based on the number of shares authorized for the year 2018. Morover, the weighted
average number of shares was adjusted for the year 2017 assuming that he increase in the bank’s

capital took place retroactively.

{37) CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The details of this item are as follows:

Cash and balances with central banks maturing within three

months
Add: Balances at banks and financial institulions maturing within

three months
Less: Banks and financial institutions’ deposits maturing within

three months
Restricted cash balances

(38) Related Parties Transactions and balances

2018 2017
JD JD
237,586,805 280,490,220
173,568,186 177,424,795
(86,661,119) (78,304,698)
- {270,305)
324,493,872 379,340,012

The Consolidated Financial Statements includes the financial statements of the Bank and its

subsidiaries include the following:

Ownership Company’s Capital
Company's Name Percentage 2018 2017
% JD JD
Ahli Micro Finance Company 100 6,000,000 6,000,000
Ahli Financial Leasing Company 100 17,500,000 17,500,000
Ahli Brokerage Company 100 3,000,000 5,000,000
Ahli Financial Technology 100 100,000 100,000

77




JORDAN AHLI BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The Bank has entered into transactions with members of the Board of Directors and Executive
Management within the normal course of its activities at the commercial interest rates and
commissions. All facilities granted to key management personnel are performing and classified
under Stage 1 and ECL for these facilities was calculated according to IFRS 9 requirements.

The following is a summary of the transactions with related parties during the year:

Total

Board of
direclors Executive 31 December
Associates Subsidiaries members Management Other* 2018 2017
JD JD JD JO JD JD
Consolidated Statement of Flnancial
Posftlon ltems:
Credit facililies 1,037,243 8,915,883 4,728,313 81,887,869 97,369,308 96,081,584
Customers’ deposils 25,134 1,806,257 45,817,142 3,055,539 6,197,642 57,201,714 37,437,949
Gash margins - - - 179,351 2,427,240 2,606,591 2,412,641
Assels at amorlized cost - - - - 3,576,365 3,576,365 -
-C Idated Statement o
Einanclal Posttlon ffems:
Indirect facilities 50,000 845,000 66,000 988 9,241,644 10,203,632 8,182,408
Consolldated Stafement of Income
ems:

Credil interest and commission 1,052 165,215 631,618 237,836 3,248,910 4,284,631 5,130,945
Debit interest and commission 1.541 164,088 1,317,856 55,429 184,122 1,723,036 1,298,855

* This item represents companies partially owned by members of the Bank’s Board of Directors’

relatives, and the Bank's employees.

There are accounts receivable from a subsidiary company (Ahli Brokerage Company) of JD
2,395,899, belonging to a related party as at 31 December 2018. On 31 October 2013, the Company
signed a settlement agreement with those clients to pay the obligations through an advance payment
upon signing the settlement agreement, in addition to monthly installments, as well as enhancement

of their guarantees.

Interest income rate range from 3,4% to 10,5% .

Interest expense rate range from 0% to 6,5%.
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The following is a summary of the benefits (salaries and remunerations plus other benefits) of the
executive management of the Bank:

For the year ended 31
December
2018 2017
JD JD
Salaries and other benefits 3,625,317 3,748,582
Travel and transportation 197,338 170,474
periderms 35,554 154,100

3,858,209 4,073,156

(39) Financial Instruments That Do Not Appear at Fair Value In The Consolidated Financial
Statements

There are no significant differences between the carrying value and fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities at the end of the year 2018 and 2017.

(40) Risk management

The bank's risk management conducts its activities (identification, measurement, management,
monitoring and controlling) through applying the best international practices in connection with risk
management, administrative organization, and risk management’s tools in accordance with the size
of the bank, its activities and types of risk it is exposed to.

The organizational structure of the bank is integrated by risk management control according to each
level. Moreover, the corporate Governance Committee, at the Board of Directors’ level, decides on
the Bank’s risk policy and strategy, and ensures the management of risk. This is to ensure setting
up and controlling the policies and instructions at an appropriate level for the types of risks the Bank
is exposed to until the achievement of the acceptance return for the shareholders without Impacting
the Bank's financial strength. In this context, the work of the Risk Management Department is
complemented by the work of the committees of executive management such as the Assets and
Liabilities Committee and the Credit Facilities’ Committee.
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(40/A)Credit Risk
The bank’s operations involve the bank’s exposure to many risk such as credit risk relating to the

default or inability of the other party to the financial instrument to settie its obligations towards the
bank, which causes losses. An important duty of the bank and its management is to ensure that
these risks do not go beyond the general framework predetermined in the Bank’s credit policy and
maintain their levels within a balances relationship among risk, return and liquidity.

Credit management at the bank is conducted by several committees from higher management and
executive management. Moreover, credit facilities ceiling that can be granted to one client (individual
or corporate) or related parties are specified in compliance with the ratios approved by the Central
Bank of Jordan, while relying on the credit facilities distribution method to each credit manger and
sector. This is performed by taking into consideration the geographic area in a manner that achieves
confluence among risks, returns and the optimal utilization of the available resources and the
enhancement of the Bank’s ability to diversify lending and allocate it to customers and economic

sectors.

The bank monitors credit risk by periodically evaluating the credit standing of the customers in
accordance with the customer's credit valuation system based on credit risk elements and
probabilities of non-payment for financial, managerial, or competition reasons. In addition, the bank
obtains proper guarantees from customers for the cases requiring that according to each customer’s
risk level and extension of additional facilities.

Moreover, the bank monitors credit risk and is continuously evaluating the credit standing of
customers, in addition to obtaining proper guarantees from them.

The bank's credit risk management policy includes the following:

1. Specifying credit ceilings and concentrations:
The credit policy includes specific and clear ratios for the maximum credit that can be granted

to a customer. Moreover, there are different credit ceiling for each administrative level.

2. Deterring the risk mitigation methods:
The bank’s risk management activity depends on several methods to mitigate risk as follows:

- Collaterals and their convertibility to cash and coverage of the credit granted.

- Pre-approval of the credit facilities committee on the credit granted.

- Credit approval authority varies from one management level to another based on the
customer's portfolio size, maturity, and customer’s risk degree.

3. Mitigating the assets and liabilities’ risk concentration:
The bank works efficiently to manage this risk as its annual plan includes the well-studied
distribution of credit focusing on the most promising sectors. In addition, credit is distributed
to several geographic areas inside and outside of the kingdom.

4. Studying, monitoring, and following up on credit:
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The bank developed the necessary policies and procedures to determine the study method of
credit, maintaining the objectivity and integrity of decision making, ensuring that credit risk is
accurately evaluated, properly approved, and continuously monitored.

The general framework of the credit policy includes setting up credit approval authorities and
clarifying credit limits and the method of determining the risk degree.

The bank's organizational structure involves segregating the work units responsible for granting
credit from the work units responsible for monitoring credit as regards to the credit terms, sounded
of the credit decision, implementation for all credit extension terms, adherence to the credit ceiling
and determinants in the credit's policy, and other related matters.

Moreover, there are specific procedures for following up on performing credit facilities to keep them
performing and non-performing credit facilities to treat them.

The bank mitigates the assets and liabilities concentration risk through distributing its activities to
various sectors and geographic areas inside and outside the kingdom. Moreover, the bank adopts
a specific policy that shows the credit ceilings granted to banks and countries with high credit ratings,
and reviews them continuously though the assets and liabilities committee, to distribute the risk and
utilize the credit evaluation. The investment policy specifies the Investment allocation ratios and their
determinants in order to distribute them in a way that achieves a high return and lowers the risk.

Exposure to credit risk (Net ECL provision, interest in suspense, collaterals and other risk
mitigations)

2018 2017
JD JD

On- Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Balances at Central Bank of Jordan 205,407,284 241,320,933
Balances at banks and financial institutions 173,568,186 177,424,795
Deposits at banks and financial Institutions 19,414,579 5,037,813
Credit Facilities:
Individual 325,419,814 343,381,520
Real-estate loans 316,199,258 305,113,633
Corporates 597,365,971 636,352,061
Small and medium companies 164,451,077 176,379,886
Government & public sector 21,044,069 22,695,285
Bonds and Treasury Bills:
Financial assets measured at amortized Cost 654,335,587 542,617,540
Other assets 14,241,044 9,959,540

Total 2,491,476,869 2,460,283,006

Off- Statement of Financial Position items

Letters of guarantee 221,790,115 238,506,804

Letters of credit 61,226,604 91,505,478

Letters of acceptances 48,549,981 48,713,890

Un-utilized facilities 160,414,035 187,152,155
481,980,735 565,878,327

Total
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JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The bank management monitor the market value of those guarantees periodically. [n case the value of the
guarantee declines, the Bank request additional guarantees to cover the shorlage. Moreover the bank

evaluates the guarantees against nonperforming credit facilities periodically.

Rescheduled loans

These represent loans classified previously as non-performing credit faciliies but taken out therefrom
according to proper scheduling and classified as watch list loans they amounted to JD 43,945,292 for the

year 2018 (2017: JD 6,847,095).
Restructured loans
Restructuring means to rearrange facilities instalments or by increasing their duration postpone some

instalments or increase the grace period...etc They are classified as a watch-list debt and it amounted to
JD 33,806,050 for the year 2018 (2017: JD 53,163,376).

Bills bonds and debentures

The table below shows the classification of bills bonds and debentures according to external rating
agencies:

As of 31 December 2018

Within financtal
assets measured

Rating Grade Rating Institution  at amortized cost Total
JD JD
Unclassified - 102,645,000 102,645,000
Governmental and
Governmental government bonds 552,079,399 552,079,309
Total 654,724,399 654,724,399

As of 31 December 2017

Within financial
assels measured

Rating Grade Rating Institution  at amortized cost Total
JD JD
AA3 MOODYS 708,886 708,886
Unclassified - 57,145,000 57,145,000
Governmental and
Governmental government bonds 484,763,654 484,763,654
Total 542,617,540 542,617,540
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(40/B) Market risks:

Market risk is the optional loss that may arise from the changes in market prices, such as the change
in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity instrument prices, and consequently, the
change in the fair value of the cash flows for the financial instruments that are on-and off consolidated

statement of financial position.

Within the bank’s investment policy approved by the Board of Directors, acceptable risks are set and
monitored monthly by the Assets and Liabilites Committee, which provides guidance and
recommendations thereon. Moreover, the available systems calculate the effect of the fluctuations
in interest rates, exchange rates and share prices.

Interest rate risks

Interest rate risk results from the potential change in interest rates, and consequently, the potential
_impact on the fair value of the financial instruments. The bank is exposed to the risk of interest rates
due to a mismatch or a gap in the amounts of assets and liabilities according to the various time
limits or review of interest rates in a certain period. Moreover, the bank manages these risks through
reviewing the interest rates on assets and liabilities based on the risk management's strategy.

The bank is exposed to interest rate risks as a result of the timing gaps of re-pricing assets and
liabilities. These gaps are periodically monitored by the Assets and Liabilities Committee through
reviewing the report to identify interest rate risk in the short and long terms and take the proper
decisions to restrict these risks in light of the expectations of the interest rate’s trend through using

all or some of the following methods:

Repricing deposits and for loans.

Changing the maturities and size of the assets and liabilities sensitive to interest rates.
Buying or selling financial investments.

Using financial derivatives for interest rate hedging purposes.

Sensitivity Analysis 2018
Sensitivity of
Change (increase) Sensitivity of interest shareholders'
Currency in interest rate (%) revenue (profit and loss) equity
JD JD
US Dollar 1 (271,095) -
Euro 1 17,640 -
British Pound 1 (13,664) -
Japanese Yen 1 (6,158) -
Others 1 105,101 -
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Sensitivity of
Change (increase) Sensitivity of interest shareholders'
Currency in interest rate (%) revenue {profit and loss) equity
JD JD
US Dollar 1 271,095 -
Euro 1 (17,640) -
British Pound 1 13,664 -
Japanese Yen 1 6,158 -
Others 1 (105,101) -
Sensitivity Analysis 2017
Sensitivity of
Change (increase) in Sensitivity of interest shareholders'
Currency interest rate (%) revenue (profit and loss) equity
JD JD
US Dollar 1 298,910 -
Euro 1 (167,704) -
British Pound 1 18,147 -
Japanese Yen 1 162,959 -
Others 1 29,058 -
Sensitivity of
Change {increase) in Sensitivity of interest shareholders'
Currency interest rate (%) revenue (profit and loss) equity
JD JD
US Dollar 1 (298,910) -
Euro 1 167,704 -
British Pound 1 (18,147) -
Japanese Yen 1 (162,959) -
Others 1 (29,058) -

Foreign currencies risk

Within its approved investment policy, the bank’s Board of Directors sets up limits for the positions
of all currencies at the Bank. These positions are monitored daily through the Treasury and
Investment Department and are submitted to the executive management to ensure that the
currencies positions are within the approved limits.

Moreover, the bank follows the hedging policy to mitigate the risks of foreign currencies by using
financial derivatives.
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Sensitivity analysis 2018
Sensitivity of

Change in currency Effect on profits and shareholders'

Currency exchange rate (%) losses equity
JD JD
Us Dollar -
Euro 5 20,610 -
British Pound 5 20,181 -
Japanese Yen 5 237 -
Other currencies 5 5,246 -
Sensitivity analysis 2017
Sensitivity of

Change in currency Effect on profits and shareholders’

Currency exchange rate (%) losses equity
JD JO

US Dollar - - -
Euro 5 (837,731) -
British Pound 5 (23,863) -
Japanese Yen 5 833,468 -
Other currencies 5 (313,433) -

Risks of Changes in Shares Prices:

This represents the risk resulting from the decline in the fair value of the investment portfolio of the
shares due fo the changes in the value of the shares’ indicators and the change in the value of

shares individually.

Sensitivity analysis 2018
Change in Effect on profit Effect on
Indicator equity prices (%) and losses shareholders
JD JD
Financial markets - 532,475
Sensitivity Analysis 2017
Changein Effect on profit Effect on
Indicator equity prices (%) and losses shareholders
JD JD
Financial markets 47,719 573,714

Shares prices risks

The Board of Directors adopts a specific policy in diversifying investments of the shares based on
geographic and sectional distribution at predetermined percentages that are monitored daily.
According to this policy, it is recommended to invest in listed shares of well-reputed international
markets that have a high liquidity rate to face any risks that might arise therefrom.

Interest repricing gap:

The banks follows a policy to match the amounts of assets and liabilities and align the maturities
and to decrease the gap through dividing the assets and liabilities to various periodic maturities or
review the interest rates in order to decent the interest rates risk and o study the gaps in the
related interest rate or by using advanced hedging tools.
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JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(40/C) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the Bank’s inability to make available the necessary funding to fulfil its
obligations on their maturities. To protect the Bank against these risk, management diversifies
funding sources, manages assets and liabilities, matches their maturities and maintains and
adequate balance of cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities.

The bank’s liquidity management policy aims to enhance the pourability of liquidity at the lowest
costs possible. Through managing liquidity, the Bank seeks to maintain reliable and stable funding

sources at a reasonable cost rate.

Management, measurement, and control of liquidity are conducted based on normal and emergency
conditions. This includes analysis of the maturity dated of assets and various financial ratios.

Fund sources:
The bank diversifies its funding sources to achieve financial flexibility and to lower funding costs.

Moreover, the bank has a large customer base comprising of individuals, establishments, and
corporations, due to its financial strength, the bank has an ability to access cash markets, which
represent an additional available funding source.

The existence of the bank in most of the cities of the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan (56 branches) |
addition to its branches in Palestine and Cyprus, enables the bank to diversify its funding sources
and not to rely on one geographic area as a source of funding.
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JORDAN AHLI BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

In order to comply with the instructions of the regulatory authorities, the bank maintains part of its
customers' deposits at the central banks as a restricted cash reserve that cannot be utilized expect
under specified regulations. In addition, the liquidity ratios are reserved at levels higher than the

minimum imposed by the central banks in the countries in which the Bank operates.

The contractual maturity dated of the assets and liabilities in the schedule have been determined
based on the remaining period from the date of the consclidated statement of financial position
until the contractual maturity date regardless of the actual maturities reflected by historical events
relating to maintaining deposits and the availability of liquidity.

Off- consolidated statement of financial position ifems:

31 December, 2018

Letters of credit and acceptances
Un-utilized facilities

Letters of guarantee

Total

31 December, 2017

Letters of credit and acceptances
Un-utilized facilities

Letters of guarantee

Total

Upto 1 Year from 1-5 Years Total
JD JD JD
162,687,494 5,213,905 187,901,399
150,414,035 - 150,414,035
203,774,583 18,015,532 221,790,115
536,876,112 23,229,437 560,105,549
179,328,800 6,448,521 185,777,321
178,748,994 8,403,161 187,152,155
194,347,806 44,158,998 238,506,804
552,425,600 59,010,680 611,436,280
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JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(41)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

1- Information on Bank Activities

The Bank is organized for administrative purposes through six main operating segments, also
brokerage and consulting services the bank's subsidiary (Ahli Financing Brokerage Company).

1-

individual accounts: Principally following up on individual customers accounts real estate
loans overdrafts credit cards facilities and transfer facilities.

SME’s: Principally “SME'’s’ transactions on loans credit facilities and deposits and whom
classified according to the volume of deposits and facilities in accordance with the
instructions and policies existing in the bank and commensurate with the instructions of the

regulatory authorities.

Corporate accounts: Principally corporate transactions on loans credit facilities and deposits,
whom classified according to the volume of deposits and facilities in accordance with the
instructions and policies existing in the bank and commensurate with the instructions of the

regulatory authorities.

Treasury: principally providing money market trading and treasury services as well as
management of the Bank's funding operations through treasury bills government securities
placements and acceptances with other banks and that is through treasury and banking

services.

Investment and Foreign currency management: The activity of this sector is related to local
and foreign bank investment as well as those restricted at fair value, in addition services for

trading in foreign currency.

Others: This sector includes all non-listed accounts in the above sectors, for example equity
and investments in associates, receivables, equipment, and general management.

-95.
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JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

{42) CaPITAL MANAGEMENT

Through the management of its paid-up capital, the Bank seeks to achieve the below goals:
- Compliance with the Central Bank capital related requirements.
- To keep the ability of the bank to continue as a going concern.
- Having a strong capita! base for supporting the Bank's expansion and development.

Capital adequacy is reviewed monthly, and reported quarterly to the Central Bank.
According to the Central Bank Instructions, the minimum requirement for capital adequacy is

12%. Banks are classified into 5 categories, the best of which is having an average capital
adequacy equal to or more than 14%.

-101 -




JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The Bank manages its capital in a way that ensures the continuation of its operating activities
and achieving the highest possible return on equity, and capital is defined according to BASIL IlI

as shown in the below table:

Primary capital according to bank’s management
requirements

Paid-up capital

Retained Earnings

Cumulative change in fair value

Statutory Reserve

Voluntary Reserve

Other Reserves

Total Ordinary Share Capital (CET 1)

Total regulatory Adjustments (deductions from
capital)

Goodwill and Intangible assets

Dividends suggested to be paid

Investment in Bank’s Capital and financial institutions
and insurance companies

Investments where the bank owns more than 10%
Deferred tax assets

Net Ordinary Shareholders

Additional Capital

Net primary Capital (Tier 1)

Secondary Capital (Tier 2)

General banking risk reserve

Provision required against credit facilities in stage 1
Total Stable loan

Net stable capital

Total regulatory capital

Total risk weighted assets

Capital percentage from regular shares (CET 1) (%)
Regulatory capital percentage (%)

2018

2017

JD

In Thousands

JD

In Thousands

192,937 183,750
34,816 24,604
(3,226) 913
57,344 54,023
15,762 24,736

3,679 2,826

301,312 290,852

(16,479} {19,787)

(11,576} (9,188)
(3,525) (3,500)
(3,531) (3,529}
(9,630) (7,659)

256,571 247,189

256,571 247,189

- 15,335

5,689 -
20,000 25,000
25,689 40,335

282,260 287,524

1,916,753 2,048,138
%13.39 %12.07
%14.73 %14.04

*  During October 2017, the bank issued subordinated bonds in the amount of JD 25 million for
a period of six year. The bonds were issued at the discounted interest rate to the Central
Bank of Jordan in addition to 2% margin. In order to improve the capital adequacy

percentage.

* Ordinary shares capital was calculated net of investments more than 10% in banks and

subsidiary financial institution.
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JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

{44) Accounts Managed on Behalf of Customers

The details of this item are as follows:

Accounts managed on behalf of customers®

December 31

2018 20107
JD JD
12,585,665 15,345,697

*This item represenis accounts with no guaranteed capital managed on behalf of customers. These
accounts do not appear within the assets and liabilities of the Bank in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

{45) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The details of this item are as follows:

Letter of credit:

Letter of credit-outgoing

Letter of credit-incoming

Acceptances

Letter of guarantees:

-Payment

-Performance bonds

-Others

Unutilized direct credit facilities ¢eilings

(46) LITIGATION

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
JD JD
61,226,604 91,505,478
78,124,814 45,557,953
48,549,981 48,713,880
110,146,698 122,067,582
77,304,183 80,245,276
34,339,234 36,193,946
150,414,035 187,152,155
560,105,549 611,436,280

- Lawsuits raised against the Bank amounted to JD 2,541,116 as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: JD 3,161,020). In the opinion of the Bank’s management and the iegal
advisor, no further liabilities exceeding the provision of JD 323,585 as at 31 December 2018

(31 December 2017: JD 458,660).

- Lawsuits raised by the bank against cthers amounted around JD 213 million, those lawsuits
are still pending at the specialized court and they have no financial impact on the bank.
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JORDAN AHLI BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

{47)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

A. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES THAT ARE MEASURED AT FAIR

VALUE ON A RECURRING BASIS:

Some of the financial assets and financials liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, the following table gives information about how the fair value of these financial
asset and financial liability are determined (valuation techniques & key inputs):

Financlal assets at fair

value

Financial assels at fair
value through profil or
loss:

Companies stocks
Financial assets at fair

value lhrough
Comprehensive income:

Quoted shares

Mulual fund

Unguoted shares

Total financial assets

at fair value

Fair value
N A Significant Relationship of
December December Fairvalue Valualion techniques unobservable unobservable
2018 2017 hierarchy and key inputs inpuls inpuls of fair value
JD JO %
Not
- 954381 Level1 Quoted shares applicable Not applicable
Not
10,649,493 11,474,277 Level 1 Quoted shares applicable Not applicable
The fund managers
evaluation of the fair Not
2,382,240 5,326,008 Level2 value applicable Not applicable
Through using the
equity methed and
latest financial Not
14,312,645 12,601,277  |evel2  information available applicable Mot applicable
27,344,278 29,401,662
27,344,278 30,355,943

There is no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year ended 31 December 2018 and

the year ended 31 December 2017.
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JORDAN AHLI BANK

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

B. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES THAT ARE NOT MEASURED AT
FAIR VALUE ON A RECURRING BASIS:

Except for what is detailed in the following table, we believe that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognized in the Bank's financial statement approximate their fair

values:

Financial assets not calculated at fair value

Deposits at Central Banks

Balances and deposits at banks and financial
institutions

Direct credil facilities at amortized cost
Financial assets at amortized cost
Force-closed assets against debts

Tofal financial assefs not calculated at fair
value

Financial liabilities not calculated at fair value

Banks and financial institutions deposits
Customer deposits

Cash margin

Borrowed funds

Total financial Liabilities not calculated at fair

value

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Fair value
Book value  Fair value Book value Fair value Hierarchy
JD JD JD JD
60,668,839 60,696,505 76,595,500 76,627,467 Level 2
192,982,765 193,162,071 182,462,608 182,566,595 Level 2
1,424,510,189  1,430,072,257 1,483,922,385 1,488.274,399 Level 2
654,335,587 662,662,486 542,617,540 547,903,282 Leval 2
98,812,408 84,107,268 91,237,052 76,838,461 Laval 142
2,431,309,788  2,430,700,687 2,376,636,086 2,372,210,204
98,159,977 98,338,562 78,304,698 78,497,597 Level 2
1,911,770121  1,919.860,284 1,918,660,372 1,924,897,183 Level 2
257,416,155 257,448,791 251,959,516 251,968,012 Level 2
142,471,809 143,222,188 106,776,265 107,039,225 Level 2
2,408,818,062  2,418,859,805 2,355,700,861 2,162,403,017

For the items listed above, the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities classified as level two
has been determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models that reflect the credit

risk of counterparties

- 107 -




JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(48) New International Financial Reporting Standards and its explanations and issued

amendments and not implemented vet

The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Bank's financial statements are disclosed below. The intends to adopt these standards, if

applicable, when they become effeclive,

IFRS 16 Leases
During January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 “Leases” which sets out the principles for the

recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases.

IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a
lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for
those two types of leases differently.

IFRS 16 introduced a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The new standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early
application is permitted.

Transition to IFRS 16
The Bank has the option to adopt IFRS 16 retrospectively and restate each prior reporting period

presented or using the modified retrospective approach by applying the impact as an adjustment
on the opening retained earnings. The Bank will elect to apply the standard to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

The Bank will adopt IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach. During 2018, the Bank
has performed a detailed impact assessment of IFRS 18. The Bank expect the effect of adopting
IFRS 16 to be JD 4.6 Million on the fotal assets and total liabilities.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts covering the recognition and
measurement and presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and replaces IFRS 4 -
Insurance Contracts. The standard applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e. life, non-life,
direct insurance and re-insurance), regardiess of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to
certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features. The standard
general model is supplemented by the variable fee approach and the premium allocation approach.

The new standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. Early
application is permitted.
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JORDAN AHLI BANK
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Ihcome Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside the
scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. An entity must determine whether to consider each
uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1January 2019, but
certain transition reliefs are available.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Coniribution of Assets between an Investor and
Its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments address the confiict between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments
clarify that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a
business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate or joint venture, is recognised
in full. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that do not conslitute a
business, however, is recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate
or joint venture. The IASB has deferred the effective date of these amendments indefinitely, but an
entity that early adopts the amendments must apply them prospectively. The Group will apply these
amendments when they become effective.

Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to IAS 19 address the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement occurs during a reporting period. The amendments also clarify that an entity first
determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, without considering the effect of
the asset ceiling. This amount is recognised in profit or loss.

An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement. Any change in that effect, excluding amounts included in the net interest, is recognised
in other comprehensive income.

The amendments apply to plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements occurring on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period that begins on or after 1 January 2019, with early
application permitted. These amendments will apply only to any future plan amendments,
curtailments, or settlements of the Group.
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Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 to long-term interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance, form part of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture (long-term interests). This clarification is relevant
because it implies that the expected credit loss model in IFRS 9 applies to such long-term interests.

The amendments also clarified that, in applying IFRS 9, an entity does not take account of any
losses of the associate or joint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognised
as adjustments to the net investment in the associate or joint venture that arise from applying 1AS

28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The amendments should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2019, with
eariy application permitted.

{49) Comparative figures

Some of 2017 balances were reclassified to correspond with those of 2018 presentation, the
reclassification has no effect
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